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1. FOREWORD BY THE MEC FOR EDUCATION IN GAUTENG

Let me take this opportunity to thank the Board of Sci-Bono for yet another successful year of
implementing collaborative work with the Gauteng Department of Education (GDE). The partnership
between the department that I lead and Sci-Bono has matured over the years, developing into a
cornerstone of excellent programme implementation and cutting-edge interventions. Furthermore,
I want to thank the staff of Sci-Bono for their commitment to the call of serving our people and,
importantly, our learners in Gauteng. Your dedication is both remarkable and commendable.
Almost two years ago, we were hit by a devastating pandemic that has disrupted the way we do our
work, changing the world, and sadly – taking many lives which cannot be replaced. COVID-19 caught
us at the time when our ICT strategy was beginning to find maturity in our schools and the GDE
was accelerating implementation towards the rollout in the lower Grades. When we first mooted
the idea of ICT rollout in our schools, severalof our detractors poured cold water on the idea and
advocated its imminent failure.
6

Seven years down the line, it has been proven that we were correct. Although, as a province, we
were miles ahead in terms of this rollout, some socio-economic gaps still existed in our society,
hampering us from reaching all learners remotely during the hard lockdown period.
We had to adapt and adopt blended learning initiatives to ensure the total coverage of all learners
during the period that learners were at home. Without the support of the School Support Unit, some
of our learners would find it difficult to compete equally. We remain grateful for this work.

MR ANDREK PANYAZA
LESUFI (MPL)
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Sci-Bono’s work at the ICT Academy puts us in good stead to prepare our learners to participate
in the ICT economy. Our ‘Coding for Foundation’ phase strategy is central in this regard. The
interactive Mathematics, Science and Technology (MST) workshops for Grades R – 12 provide the
added layer of support in the MST space. Over the past couple of years, as we roll out our Schools
of Specialisation, the MST environment has been one of our most important focus areas. These
workshops provide the added support we need to deliver results – especially in Grade 12.

Allow me to also thank our private sector partners who continue to invest valuable
resources in Sci-Bono, supporting the vision of equity and excellence. It is these
types of partnerships that we need to build a better province, and by extension –
country.
I want to conclude by saying that the fight for the number one province in the
country still rages on. I do not have any doubt that our partnership is positioned in
such a way that it makes our quest for the best, that much easier.
Thank you
ANDREK (PANYAZA) LESUFI (MPL)
MEC FOR EDUCATION
GAUTENG DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

7

2. CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT

On behalf of the Sci-Bono Discovery Centre Board of Directors, I herewith present the chairperson’s
report for the 2020/2021 reporting period under review as a true reflection of accomplishments
achieved as well as setbacks experienced.
Our partnership with the GDE is very strong and remains aligned to the 2019/2024 education
roadmap. Amongst other objectives, we strive to implement educational innovation that improves
the level of performance in MST and to optimise the use of ICT as a basis for skills development in
the new era of the Fourth Industrial Revolution (4IR).
The COVID-19 pandemic presented us with great challenges, negatively impacting the achievement
of some of our strategic goals. In pursuit of quality and equal education, a great deal of effort and
resources required deployment to avoid negatively impacting the rollout of the School Support
Improvement Programme (SSIP).
8

The value of SSIP has been acknowledged as one of the key contributors towards equal education
and the continued improvement of our Grade 12 learners’ performance in Gauteng. This programme
reaches thousands of learners from previously disadvantaged areas and remains highly strategic
towards achieving transformation as well as economic development.
As a world-class sciene centre, one of Sci-Bono’s most important tasks is to build a society
captivated by scientific inventions. In pursuit of this objective, the Board of Directors’ tenacity and
diligence continued to provide guidance and leadership, ensuring that the organisation remained
on course in trying times. We succeeded at securing ongoing business continuity and good overall
performance.

MR ABBEY WITBOOI
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The global economic decline as a result of the pandemic affected all countries; they all had to
unearth extra resources in response to the drawbacks of COVID-19. The same scenario also
presented us with grave challenges and necessitated prudent financial management to ensure
financial sustainability.

As we work towards achieving Sci-Bono’s strategic objectives, we must take care
to include our staff in the collective effort as they serve a very important purpose.
Over the last year, the Board invested a great deal of effort in enhancing systems
and improving organisational governance to deliver positive outcomes.
We extend our most sincere gratitude to the MEC of education, Mr Panyaza Lesufi,
and all staff of the Gauteng Department of Education under HOD, Mr Edward
Mosuwe, for their unwavering support and confidence in Sci-Bono Discovery
Centre.
We also wish to pay tribute to the late chairperson of the Sci-Bono Board of
Directors, Mr Piroshaw Camay who served the institution from 2004 to 2016,
laying a solid foundation for growing the organisation. This year marks the fifth
anniversary of his passing.
We look forward to 2022 with more vigour than before and I firmly urge all of us to
adapt to the new normal. We are a resilient nation, we shall overcome all of these
challenges, and more.
Thank you. Realeboga. Enkosi.

MR ABBEY WITBOOI
BOARD CHAIRPERSON
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3. CEO EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Sci-Bono has experienced another great but challenging year under the new normal of the COVID-19
pandemic which affected all of us immeasurably. Management and employees had to work together
to ensure that the strategic goals were achieved, and that the overall delivery of services to the
public remained possible and accessible to all. It was a challenging year that demanded creativity,
innovative thinking, and full reliance on technology. I am happy to report that under the difficult
circumstances, the team did exceptionally well with the implementation of the strategy and in
achieving the set strategic goals and objectives.
2020/2021 saw the implementation of the Board-approved 2019/2024 organisational strategy.
Management developed the 2020/2021 Annual Performance Plan which guided the implementation
of the strategy in Sci-Bono departments across the board. The strategy has five goals:
•
•
•
•
•
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Goal 1: Build a proficient society in the world of science
Goal 2: Enhance operational efficiency and optimise the agility of service delivery
Goal 3: Improve and strengthen financial viability and sustainability
Goal 4: Build strong research and development capacity and
Goal 5: Improve organisational sustainability.

Each of the five goals has been broken down into strategic objectives that are used as performance
indicators for quarterly reports. This report will therefore give an account of the performance for
2020/21, measured against the approved strategy and performance targets.
.

STRATEGIC GOAL 1: TO BUILD A COMPETENT SOCIETY
IN THE WORLD OF SCIENCE

DR MORE CHAKANE
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Our core business activities saw relatively steady numbers of participation in the different easing of
lockdown levels. The centre activities were offered at a decreased scale with interactive exhibitions
being phased in as the lockdown restrictions were eased. Some of the programmes had to be
completely cancelled, while others had to be halted to ensure a safe environment for the visitors
and the staff members.

STRATEGIC GOAL 1
Strategic
Objective 1.1

Strategic
Objective 1.2

Strategic
Objective 1.3
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Strategic
Objective 1.4

Strategic
Objective 1.5
0,5

Sum of Yellow

1,0

0,5

2,0

Sum of Green

The Science Centre received 14,800 visitors for the 2020/21 period, which is an
expected decrease from 115,617 of the previous year due to the COVID-19 hard
lockdown in March to April 2020. The centre reached the following targets: Science,
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) shows 7,239 visitors; 2,623 in
two holiday programmes; 1,557 in Industry Focus Weeks; 15 birthday parties;
7,073 for Science Education programmes, 443 participants in special activities,
336 participants during community outreach, one Speak to a Scientist event with
112 participants, and a United Nation International Day with 91 participants.

Our Exhibitory Department provides support to the Science Centre by developing
prototypes, revamping, and introducing new exhibits through partnerships that
support the vision of the organisation to become a world-class science centre.
The Exhibitory Department provides a visitor experience with over 350 in-house
interactive exhibits and over 20 mobile exhibits used for events, expos, and
outreach engagements in schools around Gauteng. I am pleased to announce that
through collaborative partnerships with National Geographic, SITES, Smithsonian,
Ticket to the Moon Management, and Andrew Pratley of Pratley’s South Africa,
Sci-Bono has secure the acquisition of 3 visiting exhibits on a permanent basis.
These exhibits include the Weird But True exhibition, H20 Today, and Destination
Moon. The exhibits continue to attract crowds and remain relevant to the South
African audience.
Many of the hands-on exhibits had to be closed to detain the spread of COVID-19,
but the centre was constantly being fogged. Sanitisers have been placed around
the centre with reminders for visitors to maintain social distancing and to properly
wear their masks above the nose. The 4IR exhibition launch was disrupted by the
lockdown, but the exhibition remains open to the public.
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Through the Sci-Bono Science Career Centre, the centre promotes and creates
awareness around STEM according to an annual calendar developed for executing
the activities and programmes in different regions in and around Gauteng. The
centre is also mandated to provide a comprehensive range of professional career
development programmes. Ideally, such inisiatives should significantly contribute
to career education and guidance for learners and out-of-school youth.
The Science Career Centre conducted some of its activities and programmes
online and in person. The participation was as follows: 273 clients for career
information and advisory services; 10,765 Grade 7 to 12 learners participated in
the group career presentation series. All special programmes were conducted
online; the combined participation is a total of 424 participants and 1,723 for the
Career Development Support and Counselling Services.
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A new activity was introduced in the 2020/21 financial year to respond to the
COVID-19 imposed reality. The programmes consists of a series of pre-recorded
video clips that cover different topics under Career Education and the Information
Series, Online Self-Directed Tutorial Series on Youth Employability Enhancers,
and web-based downloadable self-directed interactive workbooks. The centre
also developed a themed social media strategy for each month during the lockdown
with different themes and topics associated with work done in Sci-Bono’s Science
Career Centre.
The School Support Department holds the mandate of the long-standing
partnership that Sci-Bono has with the GDE that focuses on supporting learners,
especially Grade 12 learners through SSIP in improving their subject performance and in reaching high numbers in the annual Grade 12 results for the
Gauteng province.
The team worked tirelessly to ensure the delivery of lessons and study material
to learners in different sites around Gauteng. The team relied strongly on the
guidelines that were introduced by the Government during the easing of the
COVID-19 lockdown levels, taking in consideration the numbers of learners allowed
per site at a time, and the mandatory use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
for learners (masks, gloves and sanitisers).
SSIP did quite well under the challenging conditions of this reporting period.
68,001 learners were supported in 496 schools for the walk-in camps, and
11,156 learners for the residential camps. This programme remains important in
supplementing normal teaching in schools especially in Mathematics and Science
subjects. The outreach team also provided much-needed support to schools of
specialisation on challenging Mathematics and Physical Science topics, reaching
4,333 Grade 8 to 12 learners.

The Teacher Training & Development Unit is another important branch that SciBono has partnered with GDE for. The unit provides teacher training for GET
Mathematics, Science and Technology across Gauteng for better delivery of
the subject content to the learners. For 2020/21, teacher training was moved
completely online to ensure the safety of the participants and to reduce contact
and the spread of the COVID-19 virus. I am proud to report that despite the
challenges of hosting training sessions online, the team managed to over-deliver
on their targets, 16 workshops were held virtually over the weekends and 128 hours
were spent during July 2020 to the end of February 2021. 9,733 teachers were
trained for this financial year. Of the 9,733, 3,640 were foundation phase, 2,965
were Intermediate phase, and 3,128 were senior phase. The numbers decreased
compared to the previous years, but under the conditions of COVID-19, they are
commendable.
Sci-Bono offers a range of training programmes under the ICT Training and Youth
Development division which are open to different groups of the public such as
learners, unemployed youth, external organisations, and internal staff members.
The programmes were affected and had to be halted during the hard lockdown
– especially ones where the youth and learners had to come into the building for
face-to-face training. The lockdown made it difficult to reach the targeted group,
because most did not immediately have the resources and financial means to
connect remotely and thus the number of participants was low for quite some time.
Training was conducted on various online platforms such as Zoom, Google
classroom and MS Teams. Over 2,030 participants were engaged for this reporting
period, with 276 being learners from the Unemployed Youth Development
Programme and 261 for the after-school Clubhouse programme. The ICT Academy
has gone the extra mile to introduce an ICT learnership programme where 26
underprivileged youth are chosen through a rigorous interview process to partake
in the 10-month learnership programme to gain employable skills for future job
placements.
We are indeed on our way to build a competent society in the world of science,
albeit reduced pace due to COVID-19.

STRATEGIC GOAL 2: TO ENHANCE
OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY AND OPTIMIZE
AGILITY OF SERVICE DELIVERY
STRATEGIC GOAL 2

Strategic
Objective 2.1

Strategic
Objective 2.2

Strategic
Objective 2.3

Strategic
Objective 2.4
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Strategic
Objective 2.5
0,1

0,2

0,3

Sum of Yellow

0,4

0,5

0,6

Sum of Green

0,7

0,8

Performance Overview for Strategic Goal 2
Our non-core business prides itself on supporting the activities in core business
and in implementing processes that ensure organisational sustainability and
longevity. Strategic Goal 2 focuses on enhancing operational efficiency and
optimising the agility of service delivery. The Human Resource Department played
a vital role in the implementation of the Board-approved 2019/2024 organisational
strategy which management has used to report on performance for this financial
year. It is also good to report that none of our permanent and fixed-term staff
members lost their jobs during the pandemic, which is a huge achievement for
management as operations were tough in this financial year.
Sci-Bono has decreased its staff compliment by letting go of casual employees to
sustain the organisation and to control the salary bill. Permanent staff members
are sitting at 157, Fixed-Term-Contract employees at 23, Psychometric Interns 2,
and zero Casual employees. Recruitment and filling of critical positions remain an
ongoing process.
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Our facilities are well managed and maintained by our Facilities Management
department who are comprised of security personnel, cleaners, maintenance
teams, and IT. The IT Strategy and Governance Framework was drafted and tabled
to the Science, Technology, Innovation and Research (STIR) Board Committee.
The implementation of the framework will be effected in the next financial year. IT
led the migration of programmes and activities to online platforms and this area
continues to be a learning curve and upskilling for all of us. Venue bookings for
conferences and meetings decreased drastically because of no contact meetings.
There were several internal and external meetings held later in the year when the
lockdown restrictions were eased. All COVID-19 protocols were observed.

STRATEGIC GOAL 3: IMPROVE & STRENGTHEN
FINANCIAL VIABILITY & SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGIC GOAL 3
Strategic
Objective 3.1

Strategic
Objective 3.2

Strategic
Objective 3.3

Strategic
Objective 3.4

Strategic
Objective 3.5
0,1

0,2

Sum of Yellow

0,3

0,4

0,5

0,6

0,7

0,8

Sum of Green

Each year, Sci-Bono embarks on strategic fundraising activities to gain access
to new meaningful partnership and to continue to grow with established ones.
Sci-Bono is thankful for all its partners, donors and sponsors that support the
organisation through funding and in-kind donations, none of the work we do would
reach millions of people around the world without your endorsement and support.
Management had to monitor the risks and financial management during the
pandemic to be able to pay salaries and to cover operational costs. Overall, total
income increased by R4,8 million (2%) from R267 million in 2019/20 to R272
million during this financial period. We recorded a surplus of R5,7 million during
the 2020/21 financial period, a decrease of R13,9 million from a surplus of R19,6
million in 2019/20 financial period. The project costs increased due to the expansion
of SSIP and the newly developed Long-Distance Multimedia Broadcasting Centre.
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GOAL 4: BUILD STRONG RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY

GOAL 5: IMPROVE ORGANISATIONAL
SUSTAINABILITY

STRATEGIC GOAL 4

STRATEGIC GOAL 5

Strategic
Objective 4.1
Strategic
Objective 5.1
Strategic
Objective 4.2
Strategic
Objective 5.2
Strategic
Objective 4.3
Strategic
Objective 5.3
Strategic
Objective 4.4

0,2
0,1

0,2

0,3

Sum of Yellow

0,4

0,5

0,6

0,7

0,4

0,6

0,8

1,0

1,2

0,8

Sum of Green

Performance Overview for Strategic Goal 4
The Research and Development Unit was set up as one of the key departments
to research themes and topics around science and technology, while finding
ways for Sci-Bono to remain innovative with cutting-edge offerings in the science
space. Most of the work that was done in the 2020/21 financial year was on the
4IR exhibition and bringing it to life for the public to be equipped on what the
Fourth Industrial Revolution entails. There are exciting activities in 3D printing,
in partnership with the Clubhouse, and we are working towards printed products
being showcased and sold to our visitors and the public at large. An international
Journal of Science Centre will also be established from Sci-Bono in partnership
with other science centres and science experts.

Sum of Yellow

Sum of Green

Sum of Orange

Performance Overview for Strategic Goal 5
Our internal and external centre activities are advertised and promoted to the public
by our Marketing & Communication department, which continuously increases our
visibility in various media broadcasting and in social media platforms. Like may
areas that suffered due to the global pandemic, our media coverage decreased
because of minimal activities that were happening, but we managed to successfully
host Speak2aScientist talks to engage in scientific affairs. The public relations and
marketing strategy has been drafted and will be adopted and implemented in the
next financial year.
Stakeholder management is an ongoing process that the CEO manages with the
fundraising department. A great deal of work continues to be invested in research,
while meetings are scheduled with a directional approach that has helped with
engaging stakeholders in donor cultivation and solicitation.
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OVERALL STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE
OVERALL STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE

Strategic
Objective 1

Overall, Sci-Bono performed satisfactorily with an average of 73%. We anticipate
a much better year as we settle into the new reality of COVID-19 and adjusting to
our new way of reporting.
I appreciate all the staff members of Sci-Bono for working together with
management during a challenging year with unforeseen circumstances that
nothing could have prepared us for.
I wish to thank the MEC for Education, My Panyaza Lesufi; the Head of Department
of GDE, Mr Edward Mosuwe; and the extended staff of GDE for their unwavering
support and encouragement in the shared mandate of producing the best services
and programmes for our schools in Gauteng.

Strategic
Objective 2
Strategic
Objective 3

I extend my appreciation to Sci-Bono’s Chairperson of the Board, Mr Abbey
Witbooi and the Sci-Bono Board members for always providing guidance –
both in terms of my own service, and the management of the organisation. The
organisational strategy was successfully implemented with the support of the
Board.

Strategic
Objective 4
Strategic
Objective 5

Sci-Bono Management and employees have shown that by working together we
can achieve more, no matter the situation or surprises. Thank you, colleagues, for
your commitment and dedication in providing a good service to our stakeholders,
clients, and visitors, for playing a pivotal role in the achievement of our goals and
objectives – you are truly appreciated.
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Total
20%

Sum of Yellow

40%

60%

Sum of Green

80%

100%

Sum of Total

Lastly, I want to express my gratitude to our public and private partners, science
fraternities, donors and funders, and all who work with us to promote the vision
of Sci-Bono to the public and to remain relevant as a science institution. Your
unparalleled support pushes us to strive for excellence – and with that, I thank you.

DR MORE CHAKANE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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IF THE PLAN DOESN’T WORK, CHANGE THE
PLAN, BUT NEVER THE GOAL.
UNKNOWN

4. SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE OVERVIEW

In the following, Sci-Bono defines the organisation’s business, its objectives and approach to reach those objectives. It includes the desired future positioning of the
organisation, combined with its principle system which serves to uphold its corporate values.
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VISION STATEMENT

MISSION STATEMENT

To be a world-class science centre capacitated to assist in instilling a culture of
science and technology, acquiring science knowledge, skills and attitudes; applying
this acquired science knowledge, skills and attitudes to develop and innovate new
products and services that uplift the quality of life for all South Africans, and using
the innovated products and services to compete in the global world of science.

To assist people in South Africa with instilling a culture of science and technology
by providing a unique platform to explore and better understand the world of
science. In particular, Sci-Bono’s mission extends into the following areas: (1)
acquisition of science knowledge, skills and attitudes; (2) application of science
knowledge, skills and attitudes; (2) developing new products and services that
improve the quality of life for all South Africans; (4) innovating and competing in
the global world of science.
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CORE VALUES (ACETIII)

FUNCTIONS

Accountability – Sci-Bono is an organisation that is willing to take responsibility
for its action.
Customer Centric – Sci-Bono places a special focus on creating a positive
experience for its customers to ensure customer loyalty and value for money.
Ethical – We promote the application of moral standards in the course of official
work.
Transparency – We are committed to openness, accountability and honesty to
build efficiency and gain stakeholder trust.
Integrity – We are committed to following our moral or ethical convictions and
doing the right thing in all circumstances.
Innovation – Sci-Bono values the introduction of new technologies that are
designed to improve the livelihoods of all South Africans.
Intellectual Diversity – Our organisation is built on a foundation of learning; one
that embraces diverse intellectual thinking and introduces learners to multiple
perspectives.

The following touchpoints serve to outline the various core and non-core
departments within the Sci-Bono Science Centre as well as the corporate services
on offer.

STRATEGIC GOALS

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Sci-Bono works towards achieving its vision and mission through the following
goals:
•
•
•
•
•

Build a competent society in the world of science.
Develop and strengthen strong internal systems and controls.
Improve and strengthen financial viability and sustainability.
Build strong research and development (R&D) capacity.
Improve organisational sustainability.

Sci-Bono initiates, develops, implements and evaluates a wide range of
programmes to achieve its goals. All programmes have strategic objectives linked
to the goals, core activities and intended results with targets, including indicators
for core and non-core functions of the organisation.

CORE FUNCTIONS
•
•
•
•
•
•

Science Education Service
Exhibitory
The Science Career Centre
School Support Unit
Teacher Training and Development
The ICT Academy

NON-CORE FUNCTIONS
Financial Management
Risk Management
Payroll
Procurement
Human Resource Management
Facilities Management
Marketing and Communications
Events Management
IT
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5. CORE BUSINESS
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SCIENCE EDUCATION CENTRE

Our department lost the services of Dr Mahapa whose term of office came to an end
and was replaced by an old hand, Akash Dusrath, who held a Deputy Manager role
at the Cape Town Science Centre. Furthermore, the COVID-19 pandemic impacted
our programmes negatively; staff had to operate from home for the better part of
2020 and 2021.

SCIENCE AWARENESS PROGRAMMES

In response to these challenges, we had to develop and use coronavirus videos,
which were linked to the curriculum. To deliver training to our teachers, we have
successfully migrated to the use of various online platforms. There has been an
overwhlemingly positive response from teachers who have embraced this method
of training. The only challenge is the high icost of conducting such training. Data
costs are also prohibitive.
Aware of the fact that 2020 also presented notable challenges to our learners,
we compiled a spring and Easter Holiday programme for our Grade 12 learners
to catch up on lost schoolwork. Preparations for SSIP spring camps took place
without any major disruptions, especially considering that it was conducted under
strict COVID-19 regulations.
Overall, the centre performed well under very difficult circumstances and the
marginal numbers are an indication of the overall performance. However, COVID-19
presented new opportunities for the centre to continue exploring online offerings,
using the benefit of hindsight to improve on future online products.
In closing, we would like to thank all our valued sponsors, old and new, who did not
abandon us during these trying economic times. Dell has been supporting Sci-Bono
for over a decade, and the GDE – since inception. During these challenging times,
we were happy to elicit the support of the Transport Education Training Authority
and Air Liquide. The ongoing support has enabled us to continue our work with
young unemployed people.
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CENTRE VISITS
Sci-Bono has always been a popular destination for families, general members of
the public, tourists, teachers, and learners. During a visit, there are opportunities
to interact with a large collection of over 350 Science, Technology, Engineering and
Mathematics exhibits that aim to facilitate the understanding of scientific concepts
through hands-on experiences; participation in exciting science shows and a variety
of fun workshops.
The 2020/2021 year has been quite a challenging one with the COVID-19 pandemic
and subsequent lockdown restrictions placing a halt on the Science Centre activities
– resulting in many planned programmes having to be cancelled, drastically
affecting visits to the centre. As restrictions eased, the Science Centre was able to
continue with its programmes, but on a scale much smaller than initially planned
under strict COVID-19 protocols and with smaller group booking. Efforts to ensure
a safe environment for visitors continued with weekly fogging of the centre taking
place and the wearing of masks, frequent sanitizing with stations set up around the
centre, and social distancing encouraged throughout visits. For the 2020/2021 year,
the centre received 14,800 visitors. Since the ease of restrictions to Level 1, visitor
attendance increased, which is promising. However, the introduction of virtual
programmes will be an important focus going forward in the delivery of activities,
due to the uncertainty that continues with the COVID-19 pandemic.

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY, ENGINEERING &
MATHEMATICS (STEM) SHOWS
STEM shows seek to engage and entertain visitors in spectacular science
demonstrations, stimulating enquiry and discussion around scientific concepts and
phenomena. Sci-Bono offers a programme of daily shows as part of all school and
public visits, designed for learners from Grades 0 – 12 as well as public visitors of all
ages. The science shows are presented at the centre and during outreach activities.
In 2020/2021, the science centre presented science shows to 7,239 visitors. SciBono would like to extend a special thanks to Afrox for their ongoing support and
sponsorship of Liquid Nitrogen.

HOLIDAY PROGRAMMES
Sci-Bono presented holiday programmes to learners and the general public during
all public school holiday periods. Each programme was topically themed and sought
to engage participants in interactive learning activities, demonstrations, exhibits
and shows. The programme sought to be enjoyable, entertaining and informative
with activities for individuals and the whole family.
The following holiday programmes took place during the 2020/2021 year:
a.

b.

FUNtastic Sci-Activities – This programme took place from 1 – 11 September
2020 and then again from 23 September through to 2 October 2020, attracting
511 visitors to the centre.
Techno-Science – This programme took place from 19 December 2020 to 17
January 2021 and then again from 25 January through to 14 February 2021
due to the extension of the school holidays. All activities aimed to educate
visitors and generate excitement around current technological advancements
of 4IR and attracted 2,112 visitors to the centre. Activities on offer were Virtual
Reality, Robotics, Augmented Reality, Hologram Technology, and Recombinant
DNA Technology.

21

22

INDUSTRY FOCUS WEEKS

BIRTHDAY PARTIES

Industry focus weeks aim to inform and educate learners, teachers, and the public
about the technology-based industries in the South African economy and to raise
awareness of the work and study opportunities in those industries. It provides an
opportunity for engagement with the professionals in the industry and highlights
the role of STEM in the various sectors. Focus weeks are planned and managed
jointly with the Science Career Centre at Sci-Bono. With the 2020/2021 year being
quite challenging due to COVID-19, which resulted in most of the planned focus
weeks for the year being cancelled, Sci-Bono hosted two focus week programmes.
In celebration of Transport month, Sci-Bono hosted Transport focus days from
19 – 23 October and from 26 October to 1 November 2020. The programme had
both an outreach and in-house component with the outreach targeting Primary
School learners from Grades 4 – 7 with a focus on Road Safety Awareness. The inhouse programme offered activities that ranged from learning about the science
of flight, robotics and hydrogen fuel cell technology to balloon-powered cars, also
showcasing old, new and upcoming technologies in the transport industry. The
programme had a total of 1,110 participants.

Sci-Bono continues to be a popular venue for Birthday Parties which are hosted for
children from the ages of 3 – 12 years old. These take place in custom-designed
venues engaging young children and family groups in scientific exploration. They
seek to develop an early appreciation of science by associating an enjoyable event
with scientific learning. In 2020/2021, the Tebogo Gule party room was completed
with two packages on offer: one including the Climbing Wall activity, and the other
– a planetarium show. A total of 15 birthday parties were hosted.

Sci-Bono hosted National Water week from 22 – 26 March 2021 to highlight the
importance of water and its conservation. The programme targeted learners
from Grades 4 – 7 and was supported by JHB Water, the Department of Water and
Sanitation, JHB City Parks and Zoo, and the Flying Star Community Group. The H2O
Today Exhibition (a Smithsonian exhibition) was the main attraction during the week
which received a total of 447 participants.

UNITED NATIONS INTERNATIONAL DAYS
International Days are celebrated across the globe and mark particular events
or topics to promote through awareness and action, the objectives of the United
Nations. In the 2020/2021 year, Sci-Bono hosted World Water Day on 22 March
2021. The day was used to advocate for the sustainable management of freshwater
resources and contributed towards raising awareness around the 2.2 billion people
living without access to clean, safe water. A core focus of the day was to support the
achievement of the Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) 6: Water and Sanitation
for all by 2030 with the theme for 2021 being “Valuing Water”. The programme was
attended by 91 participants.
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH
Sci-Bono coordinates and facilitates various community outreach programmes to
create awareness and excitement around science and technology and its importance
and relevance in our everyday lives. During these outreach engagements, a range
of activities is presented including enthralling science shows, experiments, and
the facilitation of interactive exhibits at public institutions and other organisations,
including schools who otherwise may not have the opportunity or means to visit SciBono. During 2020/2021, Sci-Bono conducted outreach activities at the following
areas/organisations:
1.
2.
3.

Newtown Junction Mall in Johannesburg on 6, 7, 13, & 14 February 2021
reaching 120 people.
The Community Literacy and Numeracy Group (CLING) in Evaton, Vaal on 20
February 2021 reaching 95 people.
The Lakeside Task Team NPC in the Vaal on 6 March 2021 reaching 121 people.

In total, 336 people were reached through the outreach activities.

SCIENCE EDUCATION PROGRAMMES
The Sci-Bono Science Education Programmes are very strongly curriculum aligned
and serve to support the delivery of the content in the classroom.

LABORATORIES
Sci-Bono has three fully equipped and functional laboratories that continue to be
an important resource in assisting learners especially from the disadvantaged
communities in Grades 10 – 12 to be able to conduct their curriculum-based

experiments in Chemistry, Physics and Life Science. The Dow Chemistry Lab, Festo
Mechatronics & Physics Lab, and the Life Science Lab also provide opportunities
for members of the public as well as younger learners to be exposed to a laboratory
environment through other fun and exciting science and technology activities. In
addition to the group experiments, the Life Science Lab developed five videos
which included the topics on the Coronavirus which had 477 views on YouTube, Eye
Dissection and DNA Extraction, all of which were made available freely on SciBono’s YouTube channel and Facebook page. In 2020/2021, the labs were able to
directly reach a total of 4,456 people.

MST WORKSHOPS
MST workshops are a series of interactive workshops designed to educate learners
and public visitors on topics relating to Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics. They are designed to enable learners to practically explore STEM
concepts and phenomena. Workshops are on offer for learners from Grade R – 12.
In 2020/2021, there were 42 workshops on offer with a total of 2,605 participants.

ROCKETRY
Sci-Bono hosted one Rocketry course in 2020, from 26 – 30 October, facilitated
by Aerospace Research. The course involved Grade 11 learners being taught the
fundamentals of Rocketry and applied Mathematics, Science and Technology –
while designing, constructing and launching a rocket within their respective teams.
Eight learners from St. Barnabas College and Soshanguve Technical participated
in the course with the teams’ rockets reaching altitudes of 427m and 368m
respectively.

SCIENCE COMMUNICATION PROGRAMMES
Science Communication programmes aim to enhance science engagement,
communicating science to the public and providing scientists and researchers
with platforms to communicate their work. These programmes aim to produce
one or more of the following personal responses to science: awareness, interest,
enjoyment, opinion-shaping, and understanding encouraging the public to engage
in conversations around science and empowering them to have more informed
opinions. The following Science Communication Programmes took place in
2020/2021:

SPEAK TO A SCIENTIST
“Speak to a Scientist” is Sci-Bono’s public science communication programme,
aimed at increasing the accessibility of science and scientific research. The talks
create a platform for public members to meet with leading local and international
scientists, helping them keep abreast of current science while engaging in topical
science and technology debates.
With the COVID-19 pandemic being a very current topical issue, Sci-Bono hosted a
virtual Speak to a Scientist event on 19 February 2021 on the topic of “NanoMedicine
in COVID-19 Vaccine”. This engagement talk was delivered by Dr. Steven Mufamadi
(PhD in Pharmaceuticals) and inspired interesting scientific discussions amongst
the audience. A total of 112 public members participated in the virtual event.

SPECIAL ACTIVITIES
PRATLEY PUTTY WORKSHOP
As part of the Space X exhibition sponsored by Pratley Putty, a hands-on bonding
workshop was also sponsored. This fun and interactive workshop combined science
and art to educate visitors about adhesives and the bonding process. The workshop
was offered during the December holiday programme, from 19 December 2020 to
17 January 2021, and Family Day during Easter on 5 April 2021. It involved visitors
decorating various cut-out objects such as Christmas trees, Easter eggs, and a
bunny – using Pratley adhesives and some general art supplies.

SCIENCE VIDEOS
In an effort to continue reaching the public following lockdown, and with the centre
being closed, the Science Centre developed nine science videos with accompanying
content – some uploaded to Sci-Bono’s Facebook page and YouTube channel. The
Pressure Science Show was quite popular, receiving 443 views on YouTube. The
videos produced include:
Pressure Science Show, Heat Capacity of Water Experiment, Rising Water
Experiment, Fun with Vitamin C, Surfactants, Squishy Circuits, Yummy DNA,
Thermal Expansion and Rock Cycle.
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EXHIBITORY

Sci-Bono continues to offer the widest selection of interactive exhibits in Southern Africa which are housed permanently
at the facility. The exhibits are at the vanguard of the visitor experience and remain a popular attraction.
In addition to over 350 exciting in-house exhibits, Sci-Bono has a collection of 20 interactive mobile exhibits that feature
during outreach engagements at schools, expos and events in Gauteng. The exhibits play a vital role in promoting both
public and learner awareness of Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Mathematics (STEAM). Exhibits are designed
to be engaging, creating excitement amongst visitors – encouraging an appreciation for science through the connection of
scientific phenomena to real-life applications.
Sci-Bono maintains a sound reputation for being the only science centre in Southern Africa with a fully equipped, inhouse exhibitory workshop. The workshop is powered by a skilled team who ensures that Sci-Bono’s collection of exhibits
remain functional and in excellent condition.
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In addition to the daily maintenance of the exhibitions, Sci-Bono designs, prototypes, manufactures and commissions
new interactive exhibits that include the installation of exhibits acquired through collaborative partnerships. Examples
of these include National Geographic’s “Weird But True” exhibition, “H2O Today” and “Destination Moon’’, which continue
to remain highlights at the centre. “H2O Today” was specifically relevant to the South African audience, due to the water
crisis. The interactive display provided a unique experience where actors explained the science through live theatrical
performances.
For “Destination Moon”, Pratley’s Putty sponsored a bonding workshop to accompany the exhibition as seen below.
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We are proud to announce that all three of these exhibitions have now been acquired
permanently – with a special thanks to National Geographic, SITES, Smithsonian,
Ticket to the Moon Management, and Andrew Pratley of Pratley’s South Africa.
With the majority of the exhibits at Sci-Bono being interactive, the Covid pandemic
made it very challenging to offer this experience to visitors. The team had to work
around the challenge of finding the best way to sanitize the many hands-on exhibits,
closing off certain exhibition areas to lower the risk of spread, while finding new
ways to ensure the quality of the experience.
Frequent fogging of the exhibition space continued, and with the required control
measures in place, we were able to eventually open access to all of the exhibition
areas. Due to hygiene issues, the popular “Climbing Wall’’ was closed and the
Concor Building Africa exhibit was partially cordoned off, limiting the experience
to 15 visitors at a time.
Sadly, last year, the exhibitions team lost their old school carpenter – Mr Francois
Breedehan. His memory will always live on in our hearts and our thoughts are with
his family. The “Heart Rope Puzzle” exhibit was built by the team in memory of Mr
Breedehan.
In line with Sci-Bono’s vision of becoming a world-class science centre, the decision
was made to purchase a CNC router machine which will enable the department to
accurately mass-produce components for exhibits – and enable the possibility of
selling such exhibits to other science centres. The router will be able to manufacture
parts that were previously outsourced. The team will now be able to use the router
for cutting wood, plastic, and aluminium.
Local and international partnerships remain integral to supporting the growth and
diversity of the exhibition collection at Sci-Bono.
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“H2O Today” was specifically relevant to the South
African audience, due to the water crisis. The
interactive display provided a unique experience
where actors explained the science through live
theatrical performances. On the right is the team
that performed the shows.
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THE SCI-BONO SCIENCE
CAREER CENTRE
The Sci-Bono Career Centre is a flagship community based, full-service career
education, info, guidance and counselling facility. Its mandate is to deliver a
comprehensive range of professional career development programs that would
significantly contribute to career education and guidance for learners and out of
school youth in Gauteng.
The centre promotes and creates awareness, primarily but not exclusively, in
Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) to align to as well
as complement Sci-Bono’s vision. The Centre offers comprehensive career
development services to a wide range of clients. Clients include, but are not
limited to: learners, post-school youth, teachers, parents, district officials, school
governing bodies, community leaders, and organised civil society structures like
Non-Profit Organisations and Faith-Based Organisations.
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The centre offers the following programmes:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Science Careers Education, Info and Advisory Services
Special Programmes which focus on STEM
Career Development Support and Counselling Services
Internship Programme in Educational Psychology and Psychometrics

SCIENCE CAREERS EDUCATION, INFO AND
ADVISORY SERVICES
This programme delivers group presentations and workshops for learners in
Grades 7 – 12. The programme activities are aligned to CAPS and focus on the world
of work, careers, tertiary studies, employment options and the development of self
in society. This programme also offers a Work Readiness Programme workshop
series which provides soft-skills training to out-of-school unemployed youth.
The workshops cover modules in job search skills and career development and
planning. The workshops also introduce youth to workplace conventions, attitudes
and temperaments such as emotional intelligence, resilience and self-regulation
to prepare them to become employable as well as integrate successfully in the
workplace.
The programme also houses a career info walk-in centre which has a collection
of paper and digital career info resources. The resources are used for reference
purposes but also to mediate and facilitate career guidance and advice for walk-in
clients seeking face-to-face guidance sessions.
The programme also runs an annual calendar of special programmes which focus
exclusively on STEM. The special programmes are designed to advocate for and to
stimulate interest in STEM careers.
The following activities were delivered in the programme:

CAREERS INFO AND ADVISORY SERVICES
The Career Info Walk-In Centre is a portal for career info resources and is used
by learners from inner-city schools, out-of-school youth and the general public to
search for employment, training, study and bursary opportunities.
The walk-in centre is staffed by qualified and skilled Career Education Facilitators
who provide career guidance and advisory services to clients who seek assistance
in career planning and development.
The walk-in centre has performed consistently well in the past years, always
exceeding targets year on year above the four thousand (4,000) threshold but the
overall output for the current financial year was marred by COVID-19. There was
very little schooling taking place in and around the precinct, especially learners
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from the Rewrite Programme who are regular users of the facility. The downward
trend has affected client visitation in a very negative way. Altogether, 273 clients
used the walk-in centre for the period.

GRADES 7 – 12 GROUP CAREER
PRESENTATIONS AND WORKSHOPS
This programme consists of a series of presentations and workshops that focus
on the development of self in society, the world of work, careers, study as well as
training and employment options available in the economy.
Most of the group activities in this programme were conducted online and where
possible in schools as and when the opportunity arose to do outreach work.
However, online delivery was limited due to the endemic challenges around
internet connectivity in schools as well as data costs for learners which presented
enormous challenges for the delivery of programmes.
Access to schools was also a huge barrier, it was always very difficult to provide
services to learners, schools were also reluctant to bring learners to Sci-Bono
including inner-city schools, but work continued – despite the obstacles. A total of
10,765 learners participated in the presentation series.

SPECIAL PROGRAMMES
The aims and objectives of all special programmes is to create awareness, promote
and advocate for science and technology careers, influence attitudes and values
towards science and technology to contribute to the uptake and pipeline of STEM
careers into higher education institutions. The theme for special programmes this
year was the Fourth Industrial Revolution and how this will affect the future of work
as jobs become more and more automated.
Except for external career expos, all the special programmes were conducted
online in the form of webinars because of COVID-19 restrictions and connectivity
posed a lot of challenges especially for the very beneficiaries who stood to get the
most out of them.

ANNUAL GIRL LEARNER PROGRAMME
The programme takes place during Women’s Month and celebrates the tenacity

and accomplishments of women in STEM. It also provides opportunities for girl
learners to engage in discussions and debates with accomplished women about
gender issues and the factors that impede or promote the successful integration
of young women in the World of Work. The focus for this year’s programme was on
Environmental careers, the session was done online and it profiled interviews with
accomplished women environmentalists.
The centre also hosted a virtual webinar, in collaboration with the Finnish Embassy
to celebrate the UN International Day for Women and Girls in Science. Dubbed
“Girls Love STEM: fighting stereotypes about girls in science” – the conversation
focused on leadership and the importance of girls and women’s access to science
and technology. This was in keeping with the 2021 theme which advocates for
women leadership and an equal future in a COVID-19 world.
The participation rates were variable and ranged from 18 to 67 online hits.

REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL OF LEARNERS’
(RCL) DIALOGUES AND DEBATES
The dialogues aim to initiate conversations about the impact of the Fourth Industrial
Revolution, its broad impact on jobs, skills, wages, and the nature of work itself,
especially to high school learners who will constitute a large percentage of the
workforce of the future. The dialogues also involve RCLs from different schools,
agencies involved in ICT Youth Development as well as other entities mandated to
drive youth Entrepreneurship development in ICT.
The debates were conducted online and the panel consisted of representatives
from the Cisco Academy, the Gauteng Department of E-Government, RCL learners
who are in Grade 9 as well as a teacher. Connectivity was a challenge, even with the
best of schools within the Schools of Specialization network. 22 participants joined
the webinar.

AGRICULTURE CAREER DAY WEBINAR
The programme is an advocacy and an awareness initiative to highlight the
importance of Agriculture in the South African economy. The session was intended to
inspire young people to aspire to take up studies in Agriculture, project the industry
as the employer of choice as well as showcase some of the latest technologies in
Agriculture and their applications in farming and manufacturing processes as the
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world begins to embrace the Fourth Industrial Revolution imperatives.
The session also attempted to encourage learners to see themselves as integral
to the productive side of the agricultural value chain beyond primary production
instead of them being mere consumers in the market. The panel consisted of
agricultural economists from Grain SA as well as lecturers from the University
of Limpopo and Department of Agriculture. Another group of 31 learners from
Ekurhuleni East TVET College came to Sci-Bono as part of the live audience. Both
groups of learners take Agriculture as one of their subjects. There were altogether
42 participants including the live audience.

INTERNATIONAL WORLD SIGHT DAY (WSD)
WEBINAR
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WORK READINESS PROGRAMME FOR
UNEMPLOYED YOUTH
The Work Readiness Programme consists of a series of employability workshops
specifically tailored for out of school youth to prepare them to integrate successfully
as well as assimilate the values and conventions appropriate to the world of work.
The workshop covers interesting topics such as job search skills, emotional
intelligence, self-awareness and regulation, teamwork and collaboration,
employability enhancers as well as skills for workplace integration. The series was
delivered in conjunction with the in-house ICT Youth Training Programme and 32
youth participated in the workshops.
A summary of milestones achieved during this period:

The centre hosted a webinar on 9 October 2020 to observe the International World
Sight Day as declared by the United Nations. Themed, “Hope in Sight” the focus
of the session was to create awareness on the issues affecting visually impaired
people in various communities, their day-to-day challenges, career opportunities
and recent technological advances and innovations which aim to improve the lives
of visually impaired persons.
The webinar consisted of a panel of visually impaired persons, the inventor of
a glove and stick sensors to improve the quality of life for visually and hearingimpaired persons. The audience consisted of blind persons from the Johannesburg
School for the Blind, 23 learners participated in the hybrid programme.

PARTICIPATION AT EXTERNAL CAREER EXPOS
The centre is periodically invited to support external career expos hosted by
churches, NGOs and other school-based exhibitions. The Centre gives presentations on grade-specific career decision-making options and other related content
relevant for career planning and development.
The Centre also participated in an external expo which was hosted by an NGO in
Orange farm. 220 learners attended. There were fewer invitations because most
exhibitors were affected by lockdown restrictions throughout the financial year.

SPECIAL PROGRAMMES
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Debates

22

0

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

50

100

150

200

250

CAREER DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT AND
COUNSELLING SERVICES
The programme is staffed by a Resident Educational Psychologist, Psychometrist
and Counsellor who are registered with the HPCSA. The Educational Psychologists
and Psychometrics interns placed in the centre work under the supervision of the
Resident Professional staff.
This programme offers a full spectrum of career development and psychological
support services, including career guidance and counselling, psychometric
assessments for subject choice, study and career decision-making as well as
supporting out of school youth in career-related matters.
It also includes therapeutic and counselling services as well as other group-based
activities for learners, parents and the public.

SUBJECT CHOICE AND CAREER
ASSESSMENTS
All the activities in this programme include various forms and categories of
psychometric assessments, which range from careers, psycho-educational
evaluations for learners with barriers to learning, assessments for careers and
subject choices for learners in Grades 12 and 9 respectively. A total number of 648
learners were assessed for subject and career choices.

FEEDBACK SESSIONS are given to individual clients and are
therefore much deeper than with group assessments because clients enjoy a safe
space within which to share extremely sensitive and personal information. Most
private clients prefer individual assessments, however, the centre generally offer
group feedback sessions for operational efficiencies. 216 client feedbacks were
conducted during this period.
As required by the Health Professions Councils of South Africa (HPCSA), advocacy
sessions must be conducted for group assessments before learners/clients can be
subjected to psychometric assessment processes. During these sessions, clients
are orientated to the right to consent and confidentiality, as prescribed by the
HPCSA guidelines. 76 group and individual advocacy sessions were conducted for
the period.

INDIVIDUAL THERAPY AND COUNSELLING
Individual counselling and therapy clients come through referrals from word-ofmouth as well as from referrals from career guidance clients who present with
underlying socio-emotional issues. The sessions are intended to facilitate personal
development, contain clients in crisis as well as support client emotional wellbeing.
The service is demand-driven and is limited to six sessions per client. 96 clients
received therapy and counselling.

GROUP COUNSELLING FOR PSYCHO-SOCIAL
SKILLS
This series is offered to learners in the Senior and FET Phases around the
development of self in society and is aligned to the CAPS curriculum. The workshops
cover topics such as bullying, teenage pregnancy, depression, and anxiety, among
others. Every year, the centre places Educational Psychology interns in full-service
schools as well as at the Schools of Specialisation.

ANNUAL INTERNSHIP PROGRAMME
The centre also hosts an annual internship programme in Psychometrics and
Educational Psychology for honours and masters’ students respectively. Interns go
through rigorous training and supervision to prepare them for the national board
exams endorsed by the Board of Psychology for professional registration with
the HPCSA. Once registered, they earn independent practice credentials and can
create jobs for themselves and for other interns looking for placement sites that
offer training and supervision.
The centre only hosted four of the six annual Student Psychometrists and
Educational Psychology interns placed in the programme. The intake was less
because of the disruptions to the programme as a result of COVID-19. Three Student
Psychometrists passed qualifying exams set by the Board for Psychology and are
now registered Psychometrists: Independent Practice.
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CAREER EDUCATION AND INFO SERIES

The following is a summary of milestones achieved for the period:

a.
b.

CAREER DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT AND
COUNSELLING SERVICES

Therapy &
Counselling

c.
d.
e.
f.

96

Advocaccy
Sessions

ONLINE SELF-DIRECTED TUTORIAL SERIES
ON YOUTH EMPLOYABILITY ENHANCERS

76

Group
Counselling

683

Career
Assessments
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a.
b.
c.
d.

648

Feedback
Sessions

216
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Grades 7 – 12 Presentation Series for each grade (six video clips)
Grade 12 Life After School clip (expanded version on various faculties and
schools in higher education, entry requirements to tertiary studies, bursaries,
university residence life, coping mechanisms for first year among others).
Career Resilience in the face of COVID-19 and beyond
Future of Work and Education in the era of the Fourth Industrial Revolution
Learning Styles Series (Parts 1 & 2)
A day in the life of a Registered Counsellor (video clip)

100

Cover Letters and CV Writing Skills
Job Interview Skills
Networking Skills
Job Search Action Plan

WEB-BASED, DOWNLOADABLE, SELFDIRECTED, INTERACTIVE WORKBOOKS
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ONLINE OFFERINGS AND SERVICES
The Career Centre had to review its programme delivery modalities to respond to
the changed realities imposed by COVID-19.
To that end, the centre produced a series of pre-recorded video clips which were
posted on social media, they are all available in the digital archive which is managed
by the Communications Department at Sci-Bono. The following video clips were
produced:
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a.

b.

Mindsets that Matter: study skills workbook designed to build resilient
mindsets in learners, once completed, it can be facilitated on and offline by
skilled psychologists and counsellors.
Career Choice Workbook: downloadable self-directed career exploration
exercise workbook which can be facilitated on and offline by skilled psychology
professionals.

SOCIAL MEDIA ENGAGEMENT
The centre developed a themed social media strategy to attract traffic to the centre
and generated posts every week. The Career Centre online offerings for career
assessments, therapy and counselling were posted at the beginning of lockdown
level 5, between April and June 2020. The rest of the social media posts were
themed according to each month as follows:

JULY – END AUGUST: SUBJECT CHOICES
SERIES FOR GRADE 9 LEARNERS
•
•
•
•
•

04, 6 & 11 August: Importance of choice of subjects on future study and career
options.
16 August: Link between subjects to study programmes and eventual career
choices.
20 August: Career pathways and exit points, options, and limitations.
27 August: The case for Pure Mathematics vs Mathematics Literacy
28 August: Where to: Pure Mathematics, Mathematics Literacy or Technical
Mathematics?

OVERALL REVIEW OF THE YEAR
All in all, the centre performed under exceptionally difficult circumstances and
the marginal numbers are an indication of the overall performance. However, this
has presented opportunities for the centre to continue exploring online offerings
using the benefit of hindsight to improve on future online products going forward.
COVID-19 presented fresh opportunities for the centre to reimagine a new and
different way of offering its services to clients. A majority of all the programmes
were conducted on Zoom, Microsoft TEAMS, other offerings such as the Grades 7 –
12 presentation series, were developed using multimedia.

SEPTEMBER: STUDY HABITS AND STUDY
SKILLS
1 September: Study Skills tutorial, eight (8) social media banners

OCTOBER: MENTAL HEALTH AWARENESS
•
•
•

6 October: Mental Health Awareness Month banner
13 October: Depression and Anxiety – causes, symptoms
20 October: Careers in Mental Health

The following banners were posted on social media according to themes in the UN
International Observance Days Calendar:

CHILDREN’S DAY (NATIONAL AND
INTERNATIONAL UN OBSERVANCE DAY)
EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT (ECD) – six (6) banners and the topics covered
developmental milestones ranging from cognitive, gross motor skills, socioemotional, sensory, speech and language development among others.

CHOOSE A JOB
YOU LOVE, AND
YOU WILL NEVER
HAVE TO WORK A
DAY IN YOUR LIFE.
CONFUCIUS
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SCHOOL SUPPORT UNIT
SECONDARY SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMME (SSIP)
The implementation of activities in 2020 was disrupted by the spread of COVID-19.
However, the COVID-19 regulations provided guidance in terms of taking precautions during implementation. Therefore, the SSIP programme was implemented for GDE during the 2020/2021 financial year. Much of the activities focused on
offering supplementary tuition to learners in priority schools.
There were 68,001 Grade 12 learners, in 496 schools supported in 2020. The
programme activated at 333 sites throughout the province. Tuition took place on
Saturdays and during school holidays, offering support in 12 gateway subjects. The
holiday programme comprised of walk-in and residential camps and 68,001 and
11,156 learners benefited respectively.
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There were extra sessions allocated for Mathematics, Physical Science and
Geography to improve the quality of the National Senior Certificate (NSC) results.
Support was also offered in critical home languages which included isiZulu,
Sesotho, Sepedi, and iSiXhosa.
The SSIP programme has become a standard component of schooling in priority
schools and is credited as a major contributing factor to the improvement of the
provincial pass rate.

MOBILE SCIENCE PROJECT
Emasondosondo is the isiZulu word for ‘wheels’ and aims to put learners on
the road to success. The programme provided support in Physical Science and
Mathematics to 4,333 learners in Grades 8 – 12 in two Schools of Specialisation.
A team of specialised teachers visited the schools and helped with the teaching of
maths and science.
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Tuitions at the Schools of Specialisation took place during the school term for
three weeks at each school. The outreach team prepared and presented topics that
teachers found challenging to teach. The team also performed physical science
and life sciences experiments which assisted with school-based assessment at
schools.

TEACHER TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT
The MST Teacher Training Programme aimed to to provide the teachers who are
involved in teaching GET Mathematics, Sciences and Technology as subjects, the
opportunity of upskilling and reskilling their content knowledge in each subject. In
addition, to determine the challenges that teachers are facing with respect to the
methodologies and use of ICT in teaching and learning in the classroom.
The circumstances (due to the advent of the COVID-19 pandemic) that the country
found itself under, forced Sci-Bono, MGSLG and GDE to look and take a different
model of training. An online or virtual teacher training approach was agreed upon
and put into operation. Lead teachers were trained using Microsoft Teams and
SMART Learning Suite Online and the same was cascaded to the teachers in the
districts.
To achieve our goal, 16 workshops were held virtually over the weekends and 128
hours were spent during July 2020 to the end of February 2021, to which teachers
received an electronic invitation to attend. The targeted number of teachers were
invited to attend the GET development programmes, and several lead teachers
presented the MST topics in GET MST subjects virtually using MS Teams.
Despite the many challenges of COVID-19, this unit managed to strive towards the
bigger picture, exceeding expectations on all accounts. Table 1 reflects the picture
of attendance from the inception of virtual trainings towards the period where the
workshops were familiar to our clients.

DATE OF
TRAINING

SUBJECT

PHASE

TOPIC

TARGET

ACTUAL
ATTENDANCE

22 August 2020

Maths

FP

Grade 2 Counting and Error Analysis

1444

1679

20 February 2021

Maths

FP

Solving Problems

1444

1961

25 July 2020

Maths

IP

Addition & Subtraction

750

55

29 August 2020

Maths

IP

Viewing of Objects & 2d Shapes

750

506

12 September 2020

Maths

IP

Whole Numbers - Multiplication and Division

750

648

20 February 2021

Maths

IP

Addition, Subtraction, Multiplication & Division

750

938

18 July 2020

Maths

SP

Grade 8 & 9: Functions, Equations & Graphs
Grade 7: Expressions & Equations

700

7

22 August 2020

Maths

SP

Grade 8 & 9: 3-D Objects and Probability
Grade 7: Integers & 3-D Objects

700

407

27 February 2021

Maths

SP

Ratio, Rate & Exponents

300 Gr 7

507 Gr 7

300 Gr 8 & 9

229 Gr 8 & 9

15 August 2020

Natural Science

SP

500

278

12 September 2020

Natural Science

SP

Development and Hosting of Online Presentations and
Lessons

500

331

6 February 2021

Natural Science

SP

The Development of Baseline and/or Diagnostic
Assessments in an Online Platform.

500

501

25 July 2020

Technology

SP

Mechanical and Electrical Systemsand Controls

500

215

27 February 2021

Technology

SP

Structures and Mechanical Systems and Control
Structures

300 Gr 7
200 Gr 8 & 9

397 Gr 7
256 Gr 8 & 9

25 July 2020

Natural Science –
Technology

IP

Metals and Nonmetals, Processing Material, Etc

700

86

13 February 2021

Natural Science –
Technology

IP

The Development of Baseline and/or Diagnostic
Assessments in an Online Platform

600

732

Table 1: Schedule of Training Dates

Matter & Material
Energy & Change
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ICT ACADEMY
ICT TRAINING AND YOUTH
DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW
This report provides an overview of the ICT activities for the
period March 2020 – April 2021.
The closure of schools and Sci-Bono due to the national
lockdown had a huge impact on the ICT Activities, resulting
in some activities coming to a halt, changing the nature of
other activities, and creating new training opportunities.
The national lockdown severely impacted the implementation of ICT Training programmes and schools;
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre closed and halted all face-toface training programmes. The Sci-Bono ICT Academy
revised its learning strategy and deployed the following
online training programmes and other initiatives to ensure
continuity in the learning processes of all its beneficiaries:
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•

•

•

•
•
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The Computer Application Technology (CAT) and
Information Technology (IT) Study Guides were
developed and distributed to 413 CAT Teachers and
12,000 learners, 102 IT teachers, and 1,300 learners.
Training was conducted on online platforms including
MS Teams, Google Classroom, Zoom and Online
Platform Security. This training was attended by 673
Sci-Bono staff and board members, GDE officials, and
teachers
Microsoft Office Specialist Training was delivered to 30
CAT and IT teachers, 46 MGSLG Administrators and 10
Sci-Bono staff members and youth
Coding for Foundation Phase was delivered to 21
teachers on the Zoom Platform
Cisco Online Introductory Courses was delivered to 552
learners and 135 YDP students `

Despite all efforts to continue programmes, we failed to reach our main
target market, the under-resourced communities and those with no access to
technological resources. The pandemic highlighted the gap between those with
access to technology and those without and reinforces the importance of providing
access to resources and learning opportunities to the neediest communities.
The valuable sponsorship of Dell Technologies enables the ICT Academy to provide
access to technology and learning opportunities under-resourced communities.
The focus of the programmes is on preparing the youth for the workforce through
work readiness engagements, technical training and qualifications, providing
school communities and learners with digital skills that enable participation in the
digital economy.
The SAP sponsorship enables the implementation of STEAM-rich programmes to
the learners at the Clubhouse and the Dell Solar Learning Labs.
Our partnership with Cisco Network Academy (Netacad) provides all our
beneficiaries access to learning resources, assessments, and internationally
recognised certification. The Cisco Networking Academy provides updated courses,
responsive to industry needs and changes and provides continuous instructor
professional development. Cisco Networking Academy transforms the lives of
learners, educators, and communities through the power of technology, education,
and career opportunities.

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT TRAINING
The Youth Development Programme (YDP), a 10-month programme equips
disadvantaged, unemployed youth with essential skills and qualifications that
improve their chances of finding employment, self-employment, learnerships,
internships or further studies. The programme provides PC Hardware and
Software Technical, Advanced Networking, Network Security, Web Development
supplemented with essential skills and career education.
The YDP impacted 276 students who attended the training under severe emotional
and financial constraints caused by job losses experienced by parents or caretakers
during Lockdown.
•

•

•

YOUTH AND LEARNER PROGRAMMES
The youth learning opportunities include all the following programmes:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Youth Development Programme
Air Liquide ICT Learnership
Dell Solar Powered Labs
Clubhouse
Coding, Robotics and Digital Literacy programmes – suspended until Term 2
of 2021.

•

The completion of the programme for the 2020/2021 students was delayed by
the lockdown. Limited online support was provided to some students who had
access to technical and internet resources. This group completed their training
in December 2020.
The 2020 YDP activities were initiated by Cisco introductory courses made
available online for Cohort 1 of 2020. 135 students completed the Cisco Online
Courses and could start the programme when contact classes resumed in
September 2020.
56 Students enrolled for YDP Second Cohort 2020, 16 completed the
fundamentals and registered for the Web Development elective, 46 completed
the fundamentals and progressed to CCNA Certification and 27 out of the 46
CCNA students progressed to Cyber Security 2021, while 13 enrolled on the
Digital Communication and Design or Microsoft Office Course
The new YDP 2021 Cohort started in March 2021 with 85 students registered
on the programme.
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successful, training for IT jobs such as network specialists, web development or
cyber analyst will be developed on a similar model to reach out at least 200 young
people over three years.
The training will roll out as boot camp, where students are placed in a high
pressurised, fast-paced environment. The aim hereof is to simulate a typical IT
support, working environment as part of preparing students for employment. The
technical training is supplemented with essential life-skills workshops such as goal
setting and motivation, financial literacy, job readiness. In addition, students will
be prepared for the workplace through additional training, support, and
mentorship to maximise job placement opportunities. Mentors will be recruited
from Air Liquide Pty, Dell Technologies, and other Sci-Bono partners and industry
professionals.

DELL SOLAR-POWERED CLASSROOMS
ICT Learnership Candidates
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ICT LEARNERSHIP AIR LIQUIDE
The programme is a 10-month ICT learnership with a focus on employable skills
to ensure work placement for each learner. This is a multi-partner sponsorship
program for guaranteed success. Air Liquide is the main funder, Dell is the
technology sponsor and Simplon.co provides the pedagogical support, upskilling
of the trainers on the Simplon.co methodology and access to the Simplon online
platform for learner management and resources.
The first cohort of 26 young people from underprivileged backgrounds who do not
have access to technology or financial means for further studies were recruited
through a rigorous interview process. The ICT Learnership aims to provide valuable
sought-after skills and qualifications to be integrated into the IT market. The
programme aims to build bridges between job seekers and companies to tackle
recruitment difficulties due to a lack of adequate training and skills.
These 26 young people will be integrated into entry-level jobs, occupying roles
like Web and Applications Developers, Customer Service Agents and Help Desk
Support Agents as well as Network Technicians. This programme, based on
methodology and toolkits from Simplon.co (network of social digital factories)
shall last 10-months and lead to recognised job certifications. If the pilot phase is
SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

Solar Lab activities resumed in September servicing 300 learners on Coding and
Robotics, Digital Literacy, Graphic Design. Grade 12 learners were also provided
with support to apply for bursaries and submit applications to institutions of
higher learning. The implementation of the Solar Lab programme was stifled by
the rotational and reduced attendance of the learners due to the social distance
required by the COVID-19 Health and Safety regulations.
The Dell iNerd Programme was suspended with the lockdown but was resumed in
March 2021. Dell employees from across the EMEAR are assigned as mentors to
40 Grade 8 and 9 learners for six weeks. The mentorship aims to provide wisdom,
share experiences, and guide the mentees with life challenges.
COURSES

GET
CONNECTED

INTRODUCTION
TO
CYBERSECURITY

INTRO TO
INTERNET
OF THINGS

NDG LINUX
UNHATCHED

TOTAL

NUMBER OF
PARTICIPANTS
REGISTERED

154

221

100

77

552

CLUBHOUSE
The Clubhouse is an after-school and holiday programme for kids aged 9 – 18
where little ones are exposed to a range of creative software and activities. The
Clubhouse activities were restricted to online creative challenges during the
national lockdown.
The Clubhouse reached 261 kids aged 8 – 18 years with the creative programmes,
placing a special focus on drone piloting and programming, the Internet of Things,
and Robotics.
Clubhouse members participated in the Clubhouse Annual Global Reach
Competition, where learners use technology to create projects in different
categories to highlight global social issues.
The Remote Pilot Licence (drone) training was implemented from February 2020
and was scheduled for completion in March 2021 but was disrupted by the national
lockdown. The training for the 12 Rhodesfield Technical High School learners was
suspended and scheduled to resume in July 2021. Three (3) Sci-Bono Clubhouse
mentors completed the training and obtained their Remote Pilot Licence accredited
by the South African Aviation Authority.

Waverley Girls High School Learners receive their Cisco
Certifications

Simpiwe Sphiri
Qualified Drone Pilot
Remote Pilot License Accredited by
the South African Civil Aviation
Authority

Grade 8 learners at Waverley Girls’ High Solar Lab
engaged in mentoring sessions with their mentors
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Clubhouse reached 261 kids aged 8 – 18 years with the creative programmes with an
emphasis on drone piloting and programming, the Internet of Things, and Robotics.
Drone training was introduced at the Clubhouse in December 2020. This programme
teaches learners how drones function, the different uses of drones, careers within
the drone industry, and how to programme drones for specific flight manoeuvres.

ACADEMY SUPPORT CENTRE (ASC) AND
INSTRUCTOR TRAINING CENTRE (ITC)
40

The Sci-Bono ASC provides academic and programme support to 30 academies
across the province.
The ITC provides training to instructors across South Africa and Africa. Special
support is provided to training Instructors from TVET Colleges and the Department
of Social Development.
•

•
•

Cisco Africa’s ‘Moves Ahead’ instructor training was Cisco Network Academy’s
response to the pandemic – an initiative to accelerate instructor professional
development during the Cisco Academy downtime. Instructors conducted
training around Africa, with Sci-Bono ICT Academy conduting training for 179
ITEs and Cyber Operations instructors.
A total of 58 Social Development instructors were trained in IT Essentials and
CCNA in August 2021.
Cisco Python Essentials and Cyber Security Essentials training was delivered
to 23 instructors from TVET Colleges in January 2021.
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THE FOURTH INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION IS
CREATING A DEMAND FOR NEW SKILLS AND
NEW COMPETENCIES.
NICKY VERD

6. NON-CORE BUSINESS

SUPPORT TO THE CORE
FUNCTION
The support function is responsible for the internal administration, logistics, finances, risk management and maintenance
of high standards of health and safety in the organisation. The
support function has two main divisions, along with their their
respective subdivisions, which are under the directorate of the
Chief Financial Officer, are:
42

FINANCE
•
•
•
•

Financial Management
Risk Management
Payroll
Procurement

CORPORATE SERVICES
•
•
•
•
•

Human Resources Management
Facilities Management
Marketing and Communications
Events Management
IT
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FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
The finance unit is responsible for the budgeting, procurement, planning, management, financial
management, disbursement of funds, risk management, and the overall monitoring of the internal
control environment within the organisation.
The activities of Sci-Bono are mainly funded by GDE programme budget transfers. The total actual
transfers for 2020/21 financial year are R280 million – up by R59 million from R220 million in the
2019/20 financial year. The transfers for the financial year 2018/19 were R209 million as per Figure 1 .

The transfers consist of R43 million for the Sci-Bono Long Distance Multimedia
Support Centre, and R216 million for STEAM support programmes – respectively

GDE TRANSFERS

set out as per Figure 2.

25 0000 000

TYPES OF GDE TRANSFERS

20 0000 000

17%

10 0000 000

15 0000 000

43

83%

5000000

MST
Conditional
Grant
Sum of 2021

Figure 1: GDE Transfers

Sci-Bono
Long Distance
Multimedia Centre
Sum of 2020

STEAM Support
Programmes

Sum of 2019

STEAM support programmes

Figure 2: Types of GDE Transfers

Sci-Bono Long Distance Multimedia
Support Centre

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Sci-Bono recorded a surplus of R5,7 million during the 2020/21 financial period
– a decrease of R13,9 million (71%) from a surplus of R19,6 million in 2019/20
financial period. However, it must be noted that, there is an operations net deficit of
R6,3 million before taking investment income of R12 million into account.
Overall, total income increased by R4,8 million (2%) from R267 million in 2019/20
to R272 million during the financial period. Over the three-year period, the total
income increased by 4%. Whilst experiencing significant increases from the
GDE funding, we’ve seen a significant decrease in the funding for the Teacher
Development project (from R25,5 million to 16,8 million). The funding for the SciBono Long Distance Multimedia Support Centre was not utilised in the current
financial year. This information has been moved and disclosed in the Statement of
Financial Position (noted as deferred income).
Whilst the funding from DELL is on a steady increase, new funding opportunities
were identified in the financial year. These include Sasol, Nashua, and National
Geographic. Sci-Bono’s normal operations contributed R1,6 million (1%) to the total
revenue, as per Figure 3.

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

25 0000 000

20 0000 000

15 0000 000

10 0000 000

5000000
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Profit for the year

Sum of 2021

Figure 3: Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year
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Sum of 2020

Sum of 2019

INCOME CATEGORIES

INCOME % OF CONTRIBUTION FY2021/22

30 0000 000

4% 2%

25 0000 000

1%

20 0000 000

10 0000 000

15 0000 000

93%

5000000

Grant
Income

Sum of 2021

Interest
Income

Other
Income

Sum of 2020
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Revenue

Sum of 2019

Grant
Income

Interest
Income

Other
Income

Revenue

Figure 4: Total Revenue

Figure 5: Income % Distribution

The organisation’s sustainability is still largely dependent on project income. Project
income contributed 93% of the total income, while interest from investment income
remains steady – averaging R12,1 million over the past three years. The institution
does not have any borrowings. As a result, cash flows are well managed and shortterm investments are optimised. The steady investment value in Nedgroup and
the consistent funding from the GDE have assisted in maximising the investment
income. Management’s next step is to invest in a sustainability account.

Project expenditure increased by R14,6 million (or 9%) from R169 million in the
prior financial period to R176 million in the 2020/21 financial period. Operational
expenses increased by R3,8 million (4%). The increase in project and operational
expenditure is largely due to the implications of COVID-19, as shown in Figure 5.

EXPENDITURE CATEGORIES

EXPENDITURE % OF CONTRIBUTION FY2021
0% Interest

200 0000 000

Expenses

160 0000 000

Operations
Expenses

34%

120 0000 000

8 0000 000

66%

4000000
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Project
Expenses

Interest
Expenses

Sum of 2021

Operations
Expenses

Other
Expenses

Project
Expenses

Sum of 2020

Sum of 2019

Figure 6: Total Expenditure
Whilst the overall expenditure has increased by 8%, it is a set strategic objective
of the organisation to decrease operational expenditure yearly. However, achieving
this objective was not possible during this year of the pandemic. The operational
expenditure represents 34%, while project expenditure represents 66%. See
Figure 7.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets increased by R48,8 million or 8% from R628 million in the 2019/20
financial year to R677,3 million in 2020/21. Trade and other receivables have
decreased to R13,4 million, and a contingent asset has been raised on the balance
of the VAT balance which was previously disclosed – the total amount amounting
to R25 million.
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0% Other

Expenses

Figure 7: Expenditure % of Contribution FY2021
Cash and cash equivalents increased from R8,7 million to R14,5 million, while
investments increased from R203,3 million to R245,2 million as a result of costsaving initiatives and improved project management cost methods.
Non-current deferred income remained steady, decreasing by R3,2 million from
R186,6 million to R183,1 million, while current deferred income is at R43 million.
Retained earnings increased from R263,3 million in 2019/20 to R272 million in
2020/21. Retained earnings were previously disclosed at R290,9 million in the
2019/20 financial year; however, a prior period error has been recognised, which
affects this balance (detailed reporting available in financial statements). Trade
and other payables increased by R3,4 million – from R14,1 million to R17,5 million.

CONCLUSION
Sci-Bono will continue to manage risks by implementing corrective measures,
monitoring and evaluations, improved financial management and sustainability,
improvements in information technology, and enhanced people management. Over
the year, Management continued to implement measures in containing costs against
rising inflation, declining interest rates, and funding struggles – attributable to
improved planning processes and procurement.

CORPORATE SERVICES

EMPLOYMENT WORKFORCE BY RACE AND GENDER

EMPLOYMENT WORKFORCE AS AT 2020/21

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT (HR)
Our team in the Human Resources Department (HR) is primarily responsible for
managing, assisting, and dealing with all employee-related matters, including
such functions as policy development and administration, benefits administration,
compliance reporting, talent management such as recruitment and selection
process, labour or employee relations, new employee orientation, training and
development, personnel management, wage and salary administration, and
employee assistance programmes. HR partners closely with the organisation as a
strategic partner to support the organisation’s strategy and establish a conducive
working environment for employees. We provide advice, support, enabling and
coaching the organisation on the human resources value chain processes, with the
view to enhance organisational peak performance.

FUNCTIONAL STRUCTURE
The HR’s operational strategy is aligned to the organisational strategy and resides
firmly within the strategic objectives of the organisation. Our strategic objectives
are to capacitate the organisation with efficient human resource and drive the
process of transfer and migration. Our target includes skills auditing, job grading,
effective recruitment, succession planning and talent management. It is important
to note that Sci-Bono is irrevocably changing, and dynamic cultures are required to
achieve efficiency. The newly proposed functional structure has been approved by
the Board, and the current organisational structure is under review.

HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATICS
Sci-Bono’s workforce includes both full-time and fixed-term capacities. In addition,
we had casual employees as well – most of these employees occupied the technical
and semi-skilled roles.
EMPLOYMENT WORKFORCE
Staff compliment during the 2020/21 financial year was 293. This figure included
fixed-term employees, casuals, and interns who were terminated during May, June,
and December 2020.

African Male

African Female

Coloured Male

Coloured Female

47
Indian Male

Indian Female

White Male

White Female

RACE & GENDER

PERMANENT

FIXED TERM

CASUAL

INTERNS

African Male

74

16

25

4

African Female

82

18

52

3

Coloured Male

1

0

2

0

Coloured Female

2

0

2

1

Indian Male

2

1

1

0

Indian Female

1

1

0

1

White Male

2

0

0

0

White Female

1

0

0

1

Total

165

36

82

10

HEADCOUNT
The total headcount as at 31 March 2021 is 182 which excludes casuals, fixed-term
contracts, and interns who were terminated in May, June, and December 2020:
•
•

Permanent Employees (157)		
Fixed Term Contract Employees (23)

•
•

Casuals (0)		 			
Psychometric Interns (2)

NUMBER OF PERMANENT (PERM & FIXED TERM) AND
PART-TIME (CASUALS) EMPLOYEES PER QUARTER
2020/21

187

Quarter 1

64

The graph shows the permanent and part-time employees per quarter on 2020/21.
PERMANENT EMPLOYEES
•

64

At 31 March 2021, the total number of permanent employees in Sci-Bono
Discovery Centre stood at 157.

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY BREAKDOWN FOR SCI-BONO STAFF ON 31 MARCH 2020/21
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185

Quarter 2

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre strives to achieve equity in the workplace by promoting
equal opportunity and fair treatment in employment matters through the elimination
of unfair discrimination and implementing affirmative action measures to address
the disadvantages in employment experienced by designated groups to ensure
equitable representation in all occupational categories and levels in the workplace
(Employment Equity Act, No 55 of 198).

181

Quarter 3

29
180

Quarter 4

2
0

50

Permanent
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100

150

Part time

200

EMPLOYMENT WORKFORCE BY SKILL
(Number of employees)
FOREIGN NATIONALS
OCCUPATIONAL
LEVELS

AFRICAN
MALE

AFRICAN
FEMALE

COLOURED
MALE

COLOURED
FEMALE

INDIAN
MALE

INDIAN
FEMALE

WHITE
MALE

WHITE
FEMALE

MALE

FEMALE

TOP
MANAGEMENT

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

3

3

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

0

PROFESSIONAL
QUALIFIED

0

1

0

1

1

2

0

0

0

0

SKILLED

41

32

0

0

0

0

1

1

3

0

SEMI-SKILLED

16

26

0

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

UNSKILLED

23

22

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

NUMERIC EQUITY TARGETS AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY TARGETS
Total Male and Female Representation (Number of employees: Fixed Term and Part
Time)

MALE AND FEMALE REPRESENTATION

The percentage of male representation is at 43.6% and target is 48%.
Female representation is at 56% and target is 60%.

177

142

Total Male

Total Female

165

128

Target Male

Target Female
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OCCUPATIONAL NUMERIC TARGETS, INCLUDING PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES.
MALE
OCCUPATIONAL LEVELS

A

C

FEMALE
I

W

Top management

A

C

I

FOREIGN NATIONALS
W

MALE

FEMALE

TOTAL

1

1

1

4

Senior management
Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors,
foremen, and superintendents

1

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

1

1

1

1

1

3

Unskilled and defined decision making
TOTAL PERMANENT

50

2

1

1

3

1

8

2

1

1

3

1

8

Temporary employees
GRAND TOTAL

NOTE: A= Africans | C= Coloureds | I= Indians | W= Whites
The employment equity targets were almost achieved; however, improvement can be made by increasing representation of people living with disability; Coloured, Indian,
and White employees in both skilled and semi-skilled levels.
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VACANCIES
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre has in total 21 vacancies. Below is a breakdown of
vacancies per occupational levels.
Vacancies by skill

Recruitment – 31 March 2020/21

RECRUITMENT — 31 MARCH 2020/21

VACANCIES — 31 MARCH 2020/21

African Female

1

Unskilled

6

2

2

Semi skilled

African Male

10

Skilled
Professional
Qualified

3

1

5
Coloured Male

Senior
Management

51

1

3
0

Top Management

0

1

Coloured Female

2

4

6

Occupational Number

8

10

0%

25%

Permanent

1

50%

Fixed Term

75%

Interns

100%

Reason for staff leaving:
It was with regret that the organisation had to action Section 189 of the Labour
Relations Act in May, June, and December 2020 due to financial constraints resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Terminations – 31 March 2020/21

TERMINATIONS — 31 MARCH 2020/21
5
African Female

2
African Male

Coloured Male

Coloured Female

0

Indian Female

0

Sci-Bono’s policies are reviewed annually to ensure standardisation and alignment.
Furthermore, HRM policies are aligned to the employment law statutes of South
Africa.

0
2
1
0

0
0
0
0

White Female

POLICY DEVELOPMENT

0
2
0
0

Indian Male

White Male

Existing study grants as well as further skills training requests by different departments were processed, particularly the statutory skills such as first-aid training.

25

5
4

0
1
0
0

52

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

52

4
3

Employee Relations: Misconduct and Disciplinary Action

NATURE OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION

2
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
9

Total

10
8
10

Permanent

82

30

70

50

Casual
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Fixed Term

90

Interns

Final Written
Warning

0

Written
Warning

0

Verbal
Warning

0

1

Dismissal

0,2

0,4

0,6

0,8

1

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS (WELL-MAINTAINED
WORK/LIFE BALANCE)

•
•

The HRM Department facilitated a health and wellness day. These wellness events
sought to promote the physical and mental health of our employees. It is also about
reducing risks to employees’ health and wellness through safe work practices,
healthy work environments, and the responsible hosting of company events. The
health and wellness initiative is a key strategy component that aims to improve
employee health behaviours, while lowering health risks and reducing absenteeism
due to health issues.

The COVID-19 virus is not a normal business disruption. It threatened the workforce
directly, and required a strong leadership, extensive set of activities to assess the
risk, pandemic plans and put people first to ensure that they are safe, productive
and to keep them engaged during the unprecedented time. Line managers were
kept updated and encouraged to keep their officials informed.

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) PANDEMIC:
INITIATIVES THAT WERE TAKEN

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND
APPRAISAL

The World Health Organization (WHO) on 11 March 2020 declared the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a global pandemic. This resulted in the South
African Government activating the Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) to deal
with the pandemic and the President of South Africa declaring the pandemic a
national state disaster in terms of the Disaster Management Act. The South
African President announced a range of measures to prevent and reduce the outbreak of this virus. The President was also able to set up emergency rapid and
effective response system to mitigate the severity of the impact. In alignment to the
national state of disaster regulations, and due to the increased number of infected
people in South Africa, the pandemic could not be taken for granted.

Sci-Bono’s overarching strategy has been approved. All divisions have developed
their five-tier operational strategy, which will be cascaded to employees. However,
individual performance management contracting has been halted due to the organisational review, transfer and migration process which Sci-Bono has embarked
on. Once the process has been completed, employees will be contracting on their
deliverables.

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre took precautionary measures to contain and or prevent
the spread of virus in the workplace:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Sci-Bono Centre was closed, however only Sci-Bono essential worker got
approval to work in the office. These were facilities personnel, security personnel, and payroll officials.
The occupational safety measures aligned to the directives were implemented.
The COVID-19 policy was developed, approved, and implemented.
The work from home policy was developed, approved, and implemented.
Employees with listed comorbidities were identified and continued to work
from home.
The Compliance Champion were appointed, and face masks, sanitisers were
issued to staff.
The occupational health and safety practitioner from City of Johannesburg was

invited to conduct the audit, and the gaps identified were closed.
Training to staff was provided and support given in transitioning back to work.
Continuous communication with employees on awareness and updates on developments during the nation-wide lock down was maintained on platforms
such as SMS, Microsoft Teams, emails as well as WhatsApp.

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
Facilities Management manages the physical resources of the organisation which
embraces the planning and development of major projects, repairs, maintenance
and refurbishments, space allocation, risk management, property portfolio,
grounds, vehicle pool, telephone communications, information technology,
security, cleaning in a sustainable manner. Sustainable maintenance of building
ensure that the building supports the core business with minimum impact on
natural resources. The departmental implemented routine maintenance plan and
suspended major projects due to COVID-19 pandemic.
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COVID-19 OUTBREAK
SCI-BONO RESPONSE
Education
In March 2020 the organisation started gradually taking measures regarding COVID-19 in terms of awareness programme for employees and
the public, which resulted in an exhibit about COVID-19. Signage and posters were placed in all strategic areas, including ablution facilities.
Temporal Closure of Offices
Offices were closed on 20 March 2020 for the office staff while Management continued working with essential services (Facilities Management
Department). On 26 March, the President announced a national lockdown Level 5 of which Manco observed and start working remotely.
However, essential services staff i.e., security personnel and some facilities staff continue doing necessary work to prepare the facility for
the return of staff.
COVID-19 Directives
The Department of Health and Department of Employment & Labour issued guidelines for employers to deal with COVID-19 at the workplace.
The Department of Employment and Labour issued a directive to employers to use the prescription of the Occupational Health and Safety Act
(OHSA) – in particular, the Hazardous Biological Agents Regulations Act, which governs workplaces in relation to Coronavirus Disease 2019
cause by the SARS-CoV-2.
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Workplace Readiness
Risk Assessment was first conducted on 7 March 2020 by the Facilities Department, in order to:
•
•
•

Identify and assess the potential risk of exposure of employees to the COVID-19 virus at workplaces.
Identify control measures (or the absence of control measures) and assess their effectiveness to prevent exposure.
Inform Management of the risk of potential exposure of employees to the COVID-19 virus and additional controls that might be required.

Risk assessment is regularly updated depending on information received from the National Department of Health, the National Institute of
Communicable Health, Department of Labour and Employment about the COVID-19 Pandemic Response and obligations of the employer. Risk
assessment is an ongoing process; as new challenges emerge, solutions are designed.
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IT DEPARTMENT
For the year 2020/21, the focus of the IT Department was to improve on services delivered and migrating key services to
the cloud where feasible in response to the growing need for remote working and delivery of programmes online, due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. This increased the need for capacity in the department to respond to the varying needs of the
organisation. During this period, we permanently onboarded two skilled technicians and hosted two interns.
The IT department has also developed a Governance and Management Framework to be adopted by the organisation, this
is aligned to the COBIT framework and related standards. The adoption and implementation of this framework will see the
department becoming compliant and adopting international best practices in the management and provision of services to
our varied clientele, both internal and external.
During the year, we had a ransomware breach that affected all servers and key services within the organisation. The
department successfully managed to rebuild the data centre environment and restore all services and data that was
affected resulting in no loss of data. This has since prompted the department to review its Disaster Recovery Protocols
and Business Continuity Plans, this will be completed early in the next financial year.
Key projects that were completed this year are:
•
•
•
•

Migration to Microsoft 365 and adoption of the cloud platform for remote working, teaching, and learning
Improved security on firewalls and servers
Replacement of faulty, and installation of new cabling infrastructure in select parts of the building
Development of Draft IT Governance and Management Framework

The IT department also supports other departments in providing virtual experiences of Sci-Bono and will be working
closely with various stakeholders in the organisation on various IT initiatives.
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MARKETING AND
COMMUNICATIONS
The Marketing and Communications Department is responsible for Sci-Bono’s
marketing, media relations, advertising, internal and external communications. It
is also responsible for general and online communications.
The past year has proven to be a very challenging one globally and has affected the
day to day running of all programmes and activities within the organisation and this
was due to COVID-19 pandemic. Only a few core programmes and activities had to
be supported.
For the year under review, we managed to successfully host the virtual
Speak2aScientist talks. These talks are aimed at engaging the public on current
scientific affairs and news-making phenomena.
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However, Sci-Bono has seen a decrease in its media coverage. The decrease is
attributed to the national lockdown as well as limited interactions with the media.
To continue expanding the organisation’s reach, we have (under the circumstances)
managed to coordinate a few engagements with the media.
Our media platforms are a contributing factor to our overall AVE, which was
impacted negatively by the pandemic as indicated above.
One of our public relations objectives is to participate in expos and exhibitions
as an effective means to highlight and create science awareness to different
stakeholders. Unfortunately, the organisation was unable to attend most of these
expos due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Marketing and Communications remain focused on providing support to the core
business of the organisation, including all the internal and external programmes
and activities that are designed to inspire our stakeholders.
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EVENTS
The Events Department is responsible for effectively coordinating and managing all
internal and external events, conferences, and meetings. The department is also
responsible for managing all operational and administrative functions to ensure
specific projects are delivered efficiently. All logistical arrangements for each
event are managed through the Events Department.
The COVID-19 pandemic had a major impact on Sci-Bono’s 2020/21 financial year, in
the sense that Sci-Bono received a number of cancellations for events, conferences
and exhibitions.
However, we did host a few GDE and GCRA events. Once restrictions were eased,
we started hosting external events and film shoots. Strict COVID-19 protocols have
been implemented at all venues and attendees have been reduced according to
guidelines.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
All members of the Board are Non-Executive
Directors (NED’s) in terms of the Sci-Bono
Memorandum of Incorporation. It is important to
note that the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is an
ex officio member of the Board of Directors. As at
31 March 2021, the Sci-Bono Board of Directors
comprised the following members:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)
Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne
(Deputy Chairperson)
Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas
Mr. Malele, Ganelang Zeth
Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane
Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel
Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johanes
(new appointee)
Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda
Prof. Sitole, Khulekani
Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee (new appointee)
Dr. Chakane, Moretsele Morrison
(Chief Executive Officer)
Rev. Chikane, Frank (Resigned)
Mr. Sathie Gounden (Resigned)

Ex Officio Member
Dr. More Chakane (1 April 2017 – present)
The Board met ten (10) times during the financial
year (see Table 1 for members’ attendance).

Table 1: Board Meetings Attended
MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

26-May-20

21-Aug-20

19-Sep-20

08-Dec-20

25-Mar-21

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Deputy Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Mr. Malele, Zeth Ganelang

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel

√*

√*

√*

√*

*

N/A

N/A

N/A

√*

√*

Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda

√*

√*

√*

*

√*

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

N/A

N/A

N/A

√*

√*

Rev. Chikane, Frank (Resigned -30 September 2020)

√*

√*

-

**

**

Mr. Gounden, Sathiaseelan (Resigned -28 October 2020)

√*

√*

√*

**

**

24-Mar-20

01-Sep-20

06-Oct-20

14-Oct-20

09-Mar-21

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Deputy Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Mr. Malele, Zeth Ganelang

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel

√*

√*

√*

√*

*

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

√*

Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

N/A

N/A

N/A

√*

√*

Rev. Chikane, Frank (Resigned -30 September 2020)

√*

**

**

**

**

Mr. Gounden, Sathiaseelan (Resigned -28 October 2020)

√*

√*

√*

√*

**

Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes

Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee

SPECIAL MEETINGS
DIRECTORS

Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes

Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee
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KEY:
√ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference | N/A Not appointed at time | ** Not a Member anymore

MR ABBEY WITBOOI

MS NANDIPHA DAPHNE
MADIBA

CHAIRPERSON

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON

Appointed 24 July 2015
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Appointed 14 November 2016

PROF. BONGANI BANTWINI

MR. ZETH MALELE

MS. PATRICIA MALOKA

ADV. LENTSWE MOKGATLE

Appointed 14 November 2016

Appointed 14 November 2016

Appointed 24 July 2015

Appointed 24 July 2015

MR. MASHANE MPHAHLELE
Appointed 28 October 2020

DR. VATHISWA
PAPU-ZAMXAKA
Appointed 20 November 2013
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PROF. KHULEKANI SITOLE

MR. GODFREY TSOTETSI

Appointed 14 November 2016

Appointed 12 October 2020

DR MORE CHAKANE
EX OFFICIO MEMBER
1 April 2017 - present

AUDIT, RISK AND
COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Table 2: Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee Meetings Attended

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC)
herewith presents their report for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021, as required by the Companies
Act 71 of 2008.

AUDIT, RISK COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND
ATTENDANCE
The ARCC was established in accordance with the
provision of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The ARCC
Charter requires that ARCC comprise of a minimum
of six (6) members. The ARCC consisted of six (6)
members, half of whom are Board members and the
others being Independent members (see Table 2 for
membership and attendance of the ARCC).
The Audit, Risk and Compliance
comprises of the following members:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

20-Jul-20

01-Oct-20 ($)

18-Feb-21

Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

Mr. Malele, Zeth Ganelang

√*

√*

√*

N/A

N/A

√*

√*

-

-

Ms. Matobako, Monica (*)

N/A

N/A

√*

Ms. Manthata, Kgabiso (*)

√*

*

*

Mr. Gounden, Sathiaseelan (Resigned -28 October 2020)

√*

√*

**

Mr. Tibini, Stephen (Resigned -28 October 2020)

√*

√*

**

Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes
Ms. Abdul Rochelle (*)

KEY: √ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference | N/A Not appointed at time
** Resigned as at 28.10.2020 | $ Joint sitting with FINCO

AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC) is delegated with the authority from the Board to provide
independent oversight of Sci-Bono’s financial reporting, internal control systems, risk management and the
external and internal audits.

Committee

Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Chairperson)
Mr. Malele, Zeth Ganelang
Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes
(appointed 28 October 2020)
Ms. Abdul, Rochelle (*)
Ms. Matobako, Monica (appointed 28 October
2020) (*)
Ms. Manthata, Kgabiso (*)
Mr. Gounden, Sathie (resigned 28 October 2020)
Mr. Tibini, Stephen (resigned 28 October 2020)
(*)

* Independent Audit & Risk Committee (ARC) members

The Committee fulfilled its responsibilities for the year under review as per the ARCC Charter. The ARC adopted
appropriate formal terms of reference as its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with the charter and
has discharged all its responsibilities. ARCC performed the following key activities:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Recommended for approval the revised ARCC terms of reference and approved the revised Internal Audit
Charter.
Approved the external audit planning memorandum and internal audit plan.
Received and reviewed audit reports from both the external and internal auditors and formulated a view about
the effectiveness of the internal control environment, systems and processes.
Made appropriate recommendations to the Board of directors and management regarding the corrective
actions to be taken as a consequence of the audit findings.
Considered the independence and objectivity of the external auditors
Reviewed and recommended for adoption by the Board, the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
The internal audit function at Sci-Bono is outsourced and the service provider is
in its third year of appointment. The Internal Audit retained an unrestricted access
to the Audit and Risk Committee. The work carried out was in accordance with the
approved plan for the year. In line with King IVTM, internal audit provided ARCC
and management with assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls. The Internal Auditors issued reports for areas of work conducted and
made recommendations to management for corrective actions to be implemented.
A follow up review was undertaken to assess the status and effectiveness of
implemented actions.

EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The ARC reviewed the internal control environment through work performed by
both the External and Internal Auditors. The overall assessment of the controls
indicates that, management has taken effort in addressing findings previously
reported and that improvements are required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
The Committee is responsible for oversight of the risk management processes
implemented and for monitoring the effectiveness of the implemented risk
management systems to ensure business continuity. Internal Audit assisted with
the facilitation of the strategic risk workshop in order to ensure that the strategic
risk register is maintained. The ARC is aware that the maturity level of risk
management is still basic and requires improvement.

THE QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT AND
QUARTERLY REPORTS
The ARCC was satisfied with the content and quality of management and quarterly
reports prepared and issued during the year under review. The actual costs incurred
were also monitored against the approved budget throughout the year. The ARCC
noted the improvements in the quality of the reports tabled by Management and
made recommendations towards remedying any shortcomings.
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EVALUATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The ARCC evaluated the Annual Financial Statements presented in this Annual
Report. The Annual Financial Statements fairly present the financial performance,
the cash flows, financial position, and the results of the financial operations for
the year ended 31 March 2021. The focus of the review of the Annual Financial
Statements was on the following:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Significant financial reporting judgments and estimates contained in the annual
financial statements
Clarity and completeness of disclosure and adequacy thereof
Quality and acceptability of, and any changes in, accounting policies and
practices
Compliance with accounting standards and legal requirements
Significant adjustments and/or unadjusted differences resulting from the audit
Reflection of unusual circumstances or events and management’s explanation
for the accounting treatment adopted
Reasons for major year-on-year fluctuations
Valuation of significant estimates
Calculation and levels of general and specific provisions
Write-offs and reversal thereof
The basis for the going concern assumption.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORT
There are no unresolved matters raised by the External Auditors and the ARCC
accepts the conclusion and audit opinion of the External Auditors on the Annual
Financial Statements. The external audit function is independent of the entity.
The ARCC has met with the External Auditors and acknowledges the diligence and
co-operation of its team.
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:

MS NANDIPHA MADIBA -CD(SA)
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT, RISK & COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

REMUNERATIONS AND HUMAN RESOURCES
COMMITTEE
The Remunerations and Human Resources Committee (REMCO) has an oversight
role over the organisation to oversee employee matters in as far as it relates to the
employee remuneration and benefits to establish whether the company is offering
competitive and/or acceptable remuneration and the strategic oversight on human
resources capital to ensure that critical positions are filled to enable the company
to achieve its mission and vision statement.
The Remunerations and Human Resources Committee comprises of the following
members:
•
•
•
•

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani (Chairperson)
Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes
Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee
Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda (resigned from the sub-committee)

The REMCO met two times during the financial year (see Table 3 for membership
attendance).
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Table 3: Remunerations and Human Resources Committee Meetings
MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

18-Mar-21

05-Feb-21 (#)

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani (Chairperson)

√*

√*

Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes

√*

**

Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee

√*

√*

N/A

√*

Dr. Zamxaka-Papu, Vathiswa Belinda

KEY: √ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference
N/A Not appointed at time | ** Resigned | # Joint sitting with FINCO

AN INVESTMENT
IN KNOWLEDGE
PAYS THE BEST
INTEREST.
BENJAMIN FRANKLIN

FINANCE COMMITTEE
The Finance Committee (FINCO) has an oversight role over the organisation
to oversee and monitor the implementation and execution of the framework for
financial management, performance against the approved budget, the Company’s
approved Supply Chain Management (SCM) procurement policies and procedures.
The overall function is governed by Terms of Reference to ensure that there
is efficient governance regarding financial strategies and performance of the
Company’s vision, mission and strategic priorities.
•

Financial Management and Administration

The Finance Committee comprises of the following members:
•
•
•
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Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane (Chairperson)
Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas
Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

The committee met bi-monthly, save for extenuating circumstances when special
meetings were called. The attendance register for the meetings held is reflected
in Table 4.
Table 4: Finance Board Committee Meetings
MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

12-May-20

15-May-20

19-Jun-20

17-Jul-20

17-Sep-20

01-Oct-20 ($)

20-Nov-20

23-Nov-20

23-Mar-21

22-Jan-21

Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

-

√*

√*

√*

√*

SPECIAL MEETINGS
DIRECTORS

17-Aug-20

05-Oct-20

22-Jan-21

05-Feb-21 (#)

03-Mar-21

Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*
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KEY: √ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference
N/A Not appointed at time | ** Resigned | $ Joint sitting with ARC
# Joint sitting with REMCO

GOVERNANCE, NOMINATIONS AND SOCIAL
AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
The Governance, Nominations and Social and Ethics Committee (GNSEC) was
established during the governance workshop held on 19 September 2020, the
committee responsibilities include, social and ethics which is a statutory committee
in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 for qualifying companies. The Company
also elected to include governance and nominations committee into this committee.
The oversight role of the GNSEC covers organisational ethics, responsible corporate
citizenship and sustainable development. The role of the committee encompasses
not only organisational ethics of Board Member’s and Prescribed Officer’s but
also seeks to encourage the creation of value in society beyond organisational
compliance and governance.
The GNSEC is composed of the following members:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)
Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne
Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane
Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel
Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda (member, Social and Ethics Committee
– resigned)
Rev. Chikane, Frank (Chairperson, Social and Ethics Committee – resigned)

The GNSEC should meet four times a year, save for extenuating circumstances
when special meetings should be called. However, the committee met three (3)
times during the financial year. The attendance register for the meeting held is
reflected in Table 5.

Table 5: Governance, Nominations and Social and Ethics Board Committee
Meetings Attended
MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

21-Jul-20

21-Sep-20

28-Jan-21

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)

N/A

N/A

√*

Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne

N/A

N/A

√*

Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane

N/A

N/A

√*

Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel

√*

√*

√*

Dr. Zamxaka-Papu, Vathiswa Belinda

√*

√*

**

Rev. Chikane, Frank (Resigned -30 September 2020)

√*

√*

**

KEY: √ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference
N/A Not appointed at time | ** Resigned
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SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY, INNOVATION AND
RESEARCH COMMITTEE
The Science, Technology, Innovation and Research Committee (STIR) is established
as a Sub-Committee of the Sci-Bono Discovery Centre’s Board. The oversight role
of the STIR covers organisational core business operations.
The STIR is composed of the following members:
•
•
•

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas (Chairperson)
Mr. Malele, Zeth Ganelang
Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda

The STIR should meet four times a year, save for extenuating circumstances when
special meetings should be called. However, the committee met three (3) times
during the financial year. The attendance register for the meeting held is reflected
in Table 6.
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Table 6: Science, Technology, Innovation And Research Board Committee
Meetings Attended
MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

13-Aug-20

29-Oct-20

12-Feb-21

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

Mr. Malele, Zeth Ganelang

√*

√*

√*

Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vathiswa Belinda

√*

√*

√*

KEY: √ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference
N/A Not appointed at time | ** Resigned
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AD HOC COMMITTEE
Ad Hoc Committee (AD HOC) was established through Board resolution on 8
December 2020, in terms of which the board of directors resolved to establish the
committee on an ad hoc basis to consider ways in which board members should
conduct themselves in the furtherance of the business of the company and develop
a set of policies and procedures for board member dealings with one another,
lodgment of complaints at board level, and how derelict directors are to be dealt
with.
The AD HOC has now been disbanded and was composed of the following members:
•
•
•

Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee (Chairperson)
Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes
Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane

The Ad Hoc committee met six times during the financial year. The attendance
register for the meeting held is reflected in Table 7.
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Table 7: Ad Hoc Board Committee Meetings Attended
MEETING DATES
DIRECTORS

12-Jan-21

26-Jan-21

16-Feb-21

26-Feb-21

01-Mar-21

24-Mar-21

Mr. Tsotetsi, Godfrey Coffee (Chairperson)

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Ms. Maloka, Patricia Ntepane

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

√*

KEY: √ Present | * Apology noted | - Absent | √* Teleconference | N/A Not appointed at time | ** Resigned

7. FINANCIALS

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC | Registration number 2004/010183/08 | Annual Financial Statements for the period
ended 31 March 2021.

GENERAL INFORMATION

POSTAL ADDRESS

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION & DOMICILE

BANKERS

South Africa

•
•

NATURE OF BUSINESS & PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

AUDITOR

Science Centre
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DIRECTORS
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•
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Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)
Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Deputy Chairperson)
Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas
Dr. Chakane, Moretsele Morisson
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Malele, Ganelang Zeth
Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel
Ms. Moloka, Patricia Ntepane
Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes
Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vhathiswa Belinda
Prof. Sitole, Khulekani
Mr. Tsotetsi, Coffee Godfrey

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre, c/o Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Street, Newtown,
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PO Box 61882, Marshalltown, 2107

Standard Bank of South Africa
Nedbank

Rakoma & Associates Inc. Chartered Accountants (S.A.) Registered Auditor
Monte Casino Office Park Ground Floor, Building B, 178 Montecasino Blvd,
Fourways Johannesburg, 2191
PO Box 1002, Randpark Ridge, Randpark Johannesburg, 2156

SECRETARY
Ms. Mtshali, Mbali

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
2004/010183/08

TAX REFERENCE NUMBER
9058859159

PREPARER

The annual financial statements were internally compiled by:
Mr. Nkateko Maluleke

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
AND APPROVAL
The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain
adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of
the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial period and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditor is engaged
to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system
of internal financial control established by the company and place considerable
importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to
meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include
the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and
all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances
is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the company is on identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the company.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and

ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given
by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance
that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow forecast for the period to 31
March 2022 and, in light of this review and the current financial position, they are
satisfied that the company has or had access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditor is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the
company’s annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been
examined by the company’s external auditor and their report is presented on pages
70 - 71.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 72 to 75, which have been prepared
on the going concern basis, were approved by the board on 14 October 2021 and
were signed on their behalf by:

MR ABBEY WITBOOI
BOARD CHAIRPERSON

DR MORE CHAKANE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on
the annual financial statements of Sci-Bono Discovery
Centre NPC for the period ended 31 March 2021.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
RESULTS AND ACTIVITIES
The annual financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of
2008. The accounting policies have been applied consistently
compared to the prior period.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations
and cash flows of the company are set out in these annual
financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
The World Health Organisation declared a global health
emergency in January 2020 and in March 2020, it declared
the spread of COVID-19 as a global pandemic. On the 15th
March 2020, the South African Government declared
a National State of Disaster, in terms of the Disaster
Management Act [No. 57 of 2002]. The COVID-19 pandemic
has developed rapidly in 2020, with a significant number of
cases. Measures taken by various governments to contain
the virus have affected economic activity.
As time passes, the impact of COVID-19 on our services
and/or operations continues to change. As a result of
quick decision-making and adaption to the new normal;
with the guidance of the Board of Directors and other Key
Stakeholders; Management were able to migrate many of
SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

our service offerings into digital platforms. The migration has assisted us to be
able to deliver on service offerings with limited impact from the continous up and
down adjustments to Lockdown Regulations.
Whilst it’s evident that the footfall has generally decreased, Management have
established a Sci-Bono Long Distance Multimedia Support Centre. Whilst
contruction is planned to be completed in October 2021, some of the components
are already operational (e.g broadcasting of live and recorded lessons). The
Support Centre will assist us in delivering most of our servvices digitally, increaase
our footprint not only Nationally but Globally. The Support Centre will improve the
service offerings going into the future.

GOING CONCERN
The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to
continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors
have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and has
funds to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of
any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors
are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory
requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the
company. The directors have considered the consequences of COVID-19 and other
events and conditions, and it has determined that they do not create a material
uncertainty that casts significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to
continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors
have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and has
funds to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of
any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors
are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory
requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the
company. The directors have considered the consequences of COVID-19 and other
events and conditions, and it has determined that they do not create a material
uncertainty that casts significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITORS
Rakoma & Associates Inc. have been appointed as auditors for the company for
2021.

SECRETARY
The company secretary is Miss Mbali Mtshali.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 72 to 75, which have been prepared
on the going concern basis, were approved by the board on 14 October 2021, and
were signed on its behalf by:
Approval of annual financial statements

MR ABBEY WITBOOI
BOARD CHAIRPERSON
THURSDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2021

DR MORE CHAKANE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

THURSDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT
To the directors of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC

OPINION
I have audited the annual financial statements of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC
set out on pages 9 to 40, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period
then ended, and notes to the annual financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
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In my opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC as at 31 March
2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

BASIS FOR OPINION
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the annual financial statements section of my report.
I am independent of the company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory
Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits
of annual financial statements in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA
Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report and the Audit Committee’s Report as required by
the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date
of this report. Other information does not include the annual financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon.
My opinion on the annual financial statements does not cover the other information
and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with my audit of the annual financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
annual financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the annual financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

•

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, I
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. I also:

RAKOMA & ASSOCIATES INC.

•

MR. LUFHUNGU, EUGENE HANGWANI PARTNER
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT (SA)
REGISTERED AUDITOR

•

•

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s
internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention
in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual financial

14 OCTOBER 2021
SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

31 March
2021

29 February
2020
Restated *

28 February
2019
Restated *

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

3

403,770,620

402,306,818

409,170,807

Intangible assets

4

332,355

21,158

37,221

404,102,975

402,327,976

409,208,031

Current Assets

72

Inventories

5

4,492

10,921

30,606

Trade and other receivables

6

13,439,753

14,005,535

28,485,387

Investments at fair value

7

245,201,090

203,320,044

148,953,795

Cash and cash equivalents

8

14,526,877
273,172,212

8,732,915
226,069,415

21,688,133
199,157,921

677,275,187

628,397,391

608,365,952

Reserves

159,804,606

162,743,022

165,455,406

Retained income

272,032,101

263,330,955

244,894,392

431,836,707

426,073,977

410,349,798

12

183,174,114

186,600,392

189,763,110

Trade and other payables

11

17,560,085

14,118,995

6,656,577

Deferred income

12

43,000,000

-

-

Provisions

10

1,704,281

1,604,027

1,596,467

62,264,366

15,723,022

8,253,044

Total Liabilities

245,438,480

202,323,414

198,016,154

Total Equity and Liabilities

677,275,187

628,397,391

608,365,952

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred income
Current Liabilities
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* See Note 25
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

Revenue

13

Cost of sales

14

Gross surplus

13 months ended
31 March
2021
1,676,670
(6,428)

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *
5,235,619
(164,378)

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *
3,779,828
(20,969)

1,670,242

5,071,241

3,758,859

3,911,840

48,326

494,237

Realisation of deferred income

3,426,278

3,162,718

3,162,718

Donations Income

4,152,132

872,357

950,554

21,497,250

21,450,000

30,924,000

840,631

-

16,420

224,644,379

225,033,433

208,357,461

Other operating income

15

Grants Income - Operations
Compensation from insurance claims
Grants Income - Project Activities
Other operating gains (losses)

16

(471,964)

(226,396)

(1,050,068)

Other operating expenses

(90,454,244)

(86,463,712)

(94,597,573)

Project activities expenses

(175,528,408)

(160,865,406)

(157,392,280)

Operating surplus/(deficit)

17

(6,311,864)

8,082,561

(5,375,672)

Investment income

18

12,072,137

11,595,498

12,925,063

Finance costs

19

(45)

(1,463)

(24,341)

Surplus/(Deficit) before taxation

5,760,228

19,676,596

7,525,050

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

5,760,228

19,676,596

7,525,050

* See Note 25
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Figures in Rand
Opening balance as previously reported

Revaluation
reserve
165,455,406

Retained
income

Total equity

268,588,743

434,044,149

Adjustments
Prior period error
Restated* Balance at 01 March 2019 as restated
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Transfer between Reserves

-

(23,694,351)

(23,694,351)

165,455,406

244,894,392

410,349,798

-

19,676,596

19,676,596

2,712,384

-

(2,712,384)

Total comprehensive income for the period

(2,712,384)

22,388,980

19,676,596

Opening balance as previously reported

162,743,022

263,371,523

426,114,545

Adjustments
Prior period errors
Balance at 01 March 2020
74

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Transfer between Reserves
Total comprehensive income for the period
Balance at 31 March 2021
Note(s)

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

(40,568)

(40,568)

162,743,022

-

263,330,955

426,073,977

-

5,760,228

5,760,228

2,938,416

-

(2,938,416)
(2,938,416)
159,804,606

8,698,644

5,760,228

272,029,599

431,834,205

9

* See Note 25
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest income

21

Finance costs

46,786,926
12,072,137
(45)

Net cash from operating activities

58,859,018

37,231,551
11,595,498
(1,463)
48,825,586

505,556
12,925,063
(24,341)
13,406,278

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

(11,214,404)

(3,428,479)

(3,435,023)

Sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangibile assets

3

398,218

-

-

4

(370,329)

-

-

Sale of investments at fair value

(41,881,046)

(54,366,249)

29,666,193

Net cash from investing activities

(53,067,561)

(57,794,728)

26,231,170

Other non-cash item

2,505

(3,986,076)

(23,694,351)

Net cash from financing activities

2,505

(3,986,076)

(23,694,351)

Total cash movement for the period

5,793,962

(12,955,218)

15,943,095

Cash at the beginning of the period

8,732,915

21,688,133

-

-

14,526,877

8,732,915

Cash flows from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances
Total cash at end of the period

8

5,770,630
(25,592)
21,688,133

* See Note 25
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

judgements include:

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LOANS RECEIVABLE

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC is a non-profit company incorporated and domiciled
in South Africa.
The annual financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2021 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on .

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial
statements are set out below.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
76

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis
in accordance with, and in compliance with, International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”) interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these annual
financial statements and the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, as amended.
The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and the Companies Act of 2008.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and
incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in
South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty, in preparing the
audited annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the financial statements and
related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ
from these estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant
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The company assesses its Trade receivables and Loans receivable for impairment
at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in surplus or loss, the company makes judgements as to whether
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a financial asset.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The carrying value of trade creditors are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

DEFERRED INCOME

Management applies judgement in assessing whether grant income cannot be
matched to the related cost and therefore will be deferred.

DEPRECIATION RATES AND RESIDUAL VALUES

Management applies estimation and judgement in determining the useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment.

VALUATION OF EXHIBITS

Management view the exhibits as unique assets, however management will still
apply judgement in determining the useful lives and fair value of the exhibitions
under Property, Plant and Equipment.
The exhibits will be treated under the normal Property, Plant and Equipment
accounting policy.

REVALUATION OF BUILDINGS

Land and buildings are revalued independently every 5 years. A more frequent
valuation will be obtained if there is evidence that indicates this is necessary. The
buildings were revalued based on market equivalent values.
Revaluations are based on current market conditions.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset
where it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the company; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property,
plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of,
or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item
of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses except for buildings which is carried at revalued amount
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a
revaluation, is recognised to other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in surplus or loss to the
extent that it reverses valuation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in surplus or loss.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is
recognised in surplus or loss in the current period.
The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease
recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in the
revaluation surplus in Reserves.
The revaluation surplus in reserves related to a specific item of property, plant and
equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings as the asset is used. The
amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their

expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as
follows:
ITEM

DEPRECIATION METHOD

AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Buildings

Straight-line

70 Years

Appliances

Straight-line

4 Years

Plant and machinery

Straight-line

5 Years

Furniture and fixtures

Straight-line

7 Years

Motor vehicles

Straight-line

7 Years

Office equipment

Straight-line

5 Years

IT equipment

Straight-line

4 Years

Exhibits

Straight-line

10 Years

Laboratory Equipment

Straight-line

4 Years

Signage

Straight-line

4 Years

Telephone equipment

Straight-line

7 Years

Tools

Straight-line

5 Years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates,
the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or loss unless it is
included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there
is an indicator that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item
of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or
loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item, is included in surplus or loss when the item is
derecognised.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

The company has capital work in progress that are disclosed as property, plant and
equipment for the current projects. The cost of these projects will be capitalised
to the asset. Completed projects will be recognised under property, plant and
equipment on completion.
Once the asset has reached the location and condition as intended by management,
capitisation of the costs cease. These costs are expensed in the statement of
surplus.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
An intangible asset is recognised when:
78

•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is
recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised
when:
•
•
•
•
•
•
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it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use
or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benefits.
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset.
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be

measured reliably.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on
all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset
is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these
intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are
reviewed every period-end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was
classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result
the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised
over its useful life.

•
•
•

financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss - designated
loans and receivables
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were
obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is reassessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated
as at fair value through surplus or loss, which shall not be classified out of the fair
value through surplus or loss category.

INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial
recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or a reserves instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items
similar in substance are not recognised as intangible assets.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for Reserves
investments for which a fair value is not determinable, which are measured at cost
and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line
basis, to their residual values as follows:

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or loss,
transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the instrument.

ITEM

USEFUL LIFE

Software

5 Years

Website

5 Years

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial instruments held by the company are classified in accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

CLASSIFICATION

The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following
categories:

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through surplus or loss are
recognised in surplus or loss.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

Financial instruments at fair value through surplus or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
being included in surplus or loss for the period.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less accumulated impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
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the investments have expired or have been transferred and the company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the
market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the company
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the company documents the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the company
documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which
is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness
requirements:

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

•

FAIR VALUE DETERMINATION
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HEDGE ACCOUNTING

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised
in surplus or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
(more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or loss within operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against operating expenses in surplus or loss.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These
are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
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there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument;
• the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from
that economic relationship; and
• the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the
quantity of the hedged item that the company actually hedges and the quantity
of the hedging instrument that the company actually uses to hedge that quantity
of hedged item.
If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement
relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective for that designated
hedging relationship remains the same, the company adjusts the hedge ratio of
the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying
criteria again.
The company designates the full change in the fair value of a forward contract (i.e.
including the forward elements) as the hedging instrument for all of its hedging
relationships involving forward contracts.
The company excludes the time value of options and designates only the intrinsic
value of options as the hedging instruments in hedges involving options as the
hedging instruments. The change in fair value attributable to the time value of
options is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as deferred hedging gains (losses). The company only hedges time period related
hedged items using options. The change in the aligned time value is recognised in
other comprehensive income and is amortised on a systematic and rational basis
over the period during which the hedge adjustment for the option’s intrinsic value
could affect profit or loss (or other comprehensive income, if the hedged item is
an equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income). However,

if hedge accounting is discontinued the net amount (i.e. including cumulative
amortisation) that has been accumulated in the deferred hedging reserve is
immediately reclassified into profit or loss.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value on the
weighted average cost.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods
or services produced and segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific
identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The
same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the
entity.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase
in net realisable value, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the company also:
•

tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet
available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed during the
annual period and at the same time every period.
• tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is
estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an
impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or
amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or loss. Any impairment loss of
a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in
surplus or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated
as a revaluation increase.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after
the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and
non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which
the service is rendered and are not discounted.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an
expense as they fall due.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:
•
•

the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
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The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The amount of a provision is the present value of
the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. The provision shall
be initially recognised at the best possible estimate at the reporting date. This value
should take into account, if material, the time value of money. When the provision
has a re-imbursive condition from a third party, the reimbursement asset is to be
recognised separately on when it is virtually certain payment will be received.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value,
are presented in the statement of financial position by setting up the grant as
deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of
the asset. Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the surplus or loss
(separately).

REVENUE
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents the amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value
added tax.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
Gate entrance fee is recognised when the amount is received.
Donations are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow into the company and revenue can be reliably measured.

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until
such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset less any temporary investment of those borrowings.
• Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds
generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The

•
•

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

the company will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
the grants will be received.

•

borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

•
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expenditures for the asset have occurred;

•
•

borrowing costs have been incurred, and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are
in progress.

Grants related to income are presented as part of surplus or loss, either separately
or under a general heading such as ‘Other income’; alternatively, they are deducted
in reporting the related expense.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development
is interrupted.
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
At the end of the reporting period:
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•
•

foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;
and
• non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial statements are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

DEFERRED INCOME
Government grants shall be recognised in surplus or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
2. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET
EFFECTIVE
The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and
interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2021 or later periods:
The interpretation applies to circumstances when an entity has either paid
or received an amount of consideration in advance and in a foreign currency,
resulting in a non-monetary asset or liability being recognised. The specific issue
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addressed by the interpretation is how to determine the date of the transaction
for the purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on the initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income when the non-monetary asset or liability
is derecognised. The interpretation specifies that the date of the transaction, for
purposes of determining the exchange rate to apply, is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or liability.
The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 January
2018.
The company expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2019 annual
financial statements.
The amendment provides clarification and further guidance regarding certain
issues in IFRS 15. These items include guidance in assessing whether promises
to transfer goods or services are separately identifiable; guidance regarding agent
versus principal considerations; and guidance regarding licenses and royalties.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January
2018.
The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2019 annual
financial statements.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2021

2020

2019

Figures in Rand

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost or
revaluation

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost or
revaluation

Buildings

444,102,475

(57,595,869)

386,506,606

443,054,600

(51,428,636)

391,625,964

442,612,119

(45,746,166)

396,865,953

Furniture and fixtures

4,321,183

(3,058,783)

1,262,400

4,299,514

(2,871,106)

1,428,408

3,494,763

(2,256,140)

1,238,623

Motor vehicles

2,372,775

(1,427,257)

945,518

1,907,470

(1,212,059)

695,411

1,907,470

(1,051,891)

855,579

Office equipment

4,074,921

(3,086,431)

988,490

3,757,778

(2,997,120)

760,658

3,656,383

(2,472,537)

1,183,846

17,977,664

(10,060,788)

7,916,876

12,323,359

(8,657,471)

3,665,888

12,472,785

(7,448,494)

5,024,291

930,360

(275,932)

654,428

537,607

(91,235)

446,372

101,033

(55,928)

45,105

17,552,739

(12,553,328)

4,999,411

15,162,721

(12,205,173)

2,957,548

15,093,326

(11,673,448)

3,419,878

1,141,766

(1,020,799)

120,967

1,141,766

(949,766)

192,000

1,130,630

(842,662)

287,968

IT equipment
Appliances
Exhibits
Laboratory equipment

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Signage

230,498

(187,450)

43,048

234,709

(175,518)

59,191

221,919

(124,847)

97,072

Telephone equipment

390,786

(129,253)

261,533

101,054

(92,767)

8,287

102,252

(89,254)

12,998

Tools

153,582

(136,970)

16,612

153,582

(136,731)

16,851

151,273

(135,173)

16,100

54,731

-

54,731

450,240

450,240

123,394

493,303,480

(89,532,86)

403,770,620

483,124,400

402,306,818

481,067,347

Capital - Work in progress
Total

(80,817,582)

(71,896,540)

123,394
409,170,807
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
2019

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 2021
Figures in Rand
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Appliances
Exhibits
86

Laboratory equipment
Signage
Telephone equipment
Tools
Capital - Work in progress
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Opening
balance

Additions

391,625,964
1,428,408

1,047,875
21,669

-

695,411

475,886

760,658

266,416

3,665,888

6,283,466

Disposals

Other changes,
movements

Depreciation

Total

-

(6,167,233)
(187,677)

386,506,606
1,262,400

-

-

(225,779)

945,518

-

-

(38,584)

988,490

-

(1,560,514)

7,916,876

(471,964)

446,372

392,754

-

-

(184,698)

654,428

2,957,548

2,390,662

-

-

(348,799)

4,999,411

192,000

1,405

-

-

(72,438)

120,967

59,191

-

-

(2,712)

(13,431)

43,048

8,287

333,044

-

-

(79,798)

261,533

-

(1,466)

16,612

16,851

1,227

-

450,240

-

-

402,306,818

11,214,404

(471,964)

(395,509)
(398,221)

(9,409,085)

54,731
403,770,620
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2019

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 2020
Figures in Rand
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

396,865,953
1,238,623

442,482
797,867

(269)

Depreciation

Total

(1)

(5,682,471)
(607,812)

391,625,964
1,428,408

855,579

-

(1)

(160,167)

695,411

Office equipment

1,183,846

137,087

(3,246)

-

(557,029)

760,658

IT equipment

5,024,291

1,051,786

(222,636)

-

(2,187,553)

3,665,888

45,105

438,116

-

-

(36,849)

446,372

3,419,878

217,963

-

23,112

(703,405)

2,957,548

287,968

11,135

-

-

(107,103)

192,000

Signage

97,072

899

-

11,891

(50,671)

59,191

Telephone equipment

12,998

-

(245)

-

(4,466)

8,287

-

(3,547)

Appliances
Exhibits
Laboratory equipment

Tools
Capital - Work in progress

-

Other changes,
movements

16,100

4,298

-

123,394

326,846

-

409,170,807

3,428,479

(226,396)

35,001

(10,101,073)

16,851
450,240
402,306,818
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
2019

RECONCILIATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 2019
Figures in Rand
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Additions

Disposals

402,020,231
1,630,343

518,706
97,283

(220,734)

Depreciation

Total

-

(5,672,984)
(268,269)

396,865,953
1,238,623

1,007,170

25,400

-

(176,991)

855,579

Office equipment

1,423,459

183,388

(25,970)

-

(397,031)

1,183,846

IT equipment

6,189,067

1,657,545

(802,429)

-

(2,019,892)

5,024,291

13,809

43,404

(1,768)

-

(10,340)

45,105

Exhibits

-

Transfers

Motor vehicles

Appliances
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Opening
balance

3,239,881

904,188

-

-

(724,191)

3,419,878

Laboratory equipment

404,663

1

-

-

(116,696)

287,968

Signage

105,951

-

(326)

-

(8,553)

97,072

Telephone equipment

47,187

-

(24,435)

-

(9,754)

12,998

Tools

15,376

5,108

-

(4,384)

16,100

Capital - Work in progress
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719,014

-

416,816,151

3,435,023

(1,075,662)

(595,620)
(595,620)

(9,409,085)

123,394
409,170,807
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REVALUATIONS
Land and buildings are re-valued independently every 5 years. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the end of each reporting period. Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in surplus or loss, in which case the increase is credited to surplus and loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the
carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in surplus or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The buildings were not revalued during the year. The last revaluation was conducted on the 1st August
2016, by an independent valuation brokering company, Mirfin Contrywide Property Valuations; and Mr Gavin Jacobs with valuer registration number 3368/2 was
seconded to conduct the valuation, based on market equivalent values in the area.
These assumptions were based on current market conditions in 2016.
13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
Figures in Rand
2020
																		
Restated *
Buildings

285,756,326

285,483,763

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *
285,232,166

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011 is available for inspection at the registered office of the company.

* See Note 25
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4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2021
Figures in Rand
Computer software
Website development costs
Total

2020

2019

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated
Amortisation

Carrying
value

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated
Amortisation

Carrying
value

Cost/
Valuation

Accumulated
Amortisation

Carrying
value

701,550

(369,195)

332,355

329,994

(308,836)

21,158

329,994

(292,770)

37,224

49,840

(49,840)

-

49,840

(49,840)

-

49,840

(49,840)

-

751,390

(419,035)

332,355

379,834

(358,676)

21,158

379,834

(342,610)

37,224

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 2021
90

Figures in Rand
Computer software

Opening
balance

Additions

Other changes,
movements

Amortisation

Total

21,158

370,329

(42,847)

(16,285)

332,355

Additions

Opening
balance

Amortisation

Total

37,221

(16,063)

21,158

Opening
balance

Amortisation

Total

53,794

(16,570)

37,224

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 2020
Figures in Rand
Computer software

RECONCILIATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 2019
Figures in Rand
Computer software
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Opening
balance

Additions
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5. INVENTORIES
Figures in Rand

Inventories (Science Shop)

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

4,492

10,921

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *
30,606

A souvenir shop was opened in July 2018 to service the customers with educational consumables (especially related to the science shows offered at the centre). Inventories are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
to be incurred in marketing and selling.
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EDUCATION IS THE KEY
TO UNLOCKING THE
WORLD, A PASSPORT
TO FREEDOM.
OPRAH WINFREY

* See Note 25
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Figures in Rand

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Financial instruments:
Trade receivables

10,663,045

12,814,176

12,801,556

Deposits

324,150

324,150

293,097

Payments in advance

540,073

540,073

540,073

1,478,811

-

13,806,913

Non-financial instruments:
VAT
Employee costs in advance
Total trade and other receivables
92

433,674

327,136

1,043,748

13,439,753

14,005,535

28,485,387

13,439,753

14,005,535

28,485,387

13,678,399

13,634,726

Split between non-current and current portions
Current assets
Categorisation of trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are categorised as follows in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial Instruments:
At amortised cost
Non-financial instruments

11,527,268
1,912,485

27,973,895

38,545,012

13,439,753

41,652,294

52,179,738

As of 31 March 2021, trade and other receivables of R2,437,097 (2019/20: R1,184,575; 2018/19 :R745445) were impaired and provided for. The ageing of these receivables is over 180
days.

* See Note 25
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6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUES)
Gross receivables can be analysed as follows:
2021
Advances

Advances

Current not yet
past due

Past due but not
impaired

Impaired
amount

540,073

-

-

Trade receivables

-

883,231

12,216,912

Sundry receivables

-

22,947

410,727

-

433,674

VAT

-

-

1,478,810

-

1,478,810

Deposits

-

Total gross
amount

(2,437,097)

-

540,073
10,663,046

-

-

324,150

540,073

906,178

14,430,599

(2,437,097)

13,439,753

324,150

Advances

Current not yet
past due

Past due but not
impaired

Impaired
amount

Total gross
amount

Gross receivables can be analysed as follows:
2020
Advances

540,073

-

-

Trade receivables

-

8,052,136

5,946,615

Sundry receivables

-

71,300

-

Deposits

(1,184,575)
255,836
-

540,073
12,814,176
327,136

-

-

324,150

540,073

8,123,436

6,270,765

(928,739)

14,005,535

324,150

Advances

Current not yet
past due

Past due but not
impaired

Impaired
amount

Total gross
amount

Gross receivables can be analysed as follows:
2019
Advances

540,073

-

-

Trade receivables

-

5,139,200

8,407,801

(745,445)

Sundry receivables

-

1,019,155

24,593

-

1,043,748

VAT

-

-

13,806,913

-

13,806,913

Deposits

-

-

293,097

540,073

6,158,355

22,532,404

-

(745,445)

540,073
12,801,556

293,097
28,485,387
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7. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
Figures in Rand

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Investments held by the company which are measured at fair value, are as follows:
Nedgroup Investments Core Income Fund C2
Nedgroup Investments Core Income ABIL Retention Fund A

245,201,090

203,320,044

-

-

-

148,953,795

245,201,090

203,320,044

148,953,795

245,201,090
245,201,090

203,320,044
203,320,044

148,953,795
148,953,795

Designated at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments at fair value
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FAIR VALUE INFORMATION

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are recognised at fair value, which is therefore equal to their carrying amounts
The following classes of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are measured to fair value using quoted market price.
The listed units as at 31 March 2021 are as follows:
* Nedbank Group Investment Core Income Fund C2 245,176,572.27 units at 1.0001 cents / unit
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss
For financial assets recognised at fair value, disclosure is required of a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used to make the measurements.
Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets.
Level 2 applies inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).
Level 3 applies inputs which are not based on observable market data.

INITIAL ADOPTION OF IFRS 9

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was adopted in the previous year and replaces IAS 39. This note reflects the application of IFRS 9 to the specified instruments. Prior year figures have
not been restated. Refer to the “other financial assets” note for disclosure of the comparative figures in accordance with IAS 39.
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8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Figures in Rand

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short term deposits

245,201,090

579

8,677

1,221,537

1,671,641

21,565,458

3,251,786

7,060,695

113,998

14,526,877

8,732,915

21,688,133

9. REVALUATION RESERVE

95

The revaluation reserve relates to the take-on assets from Jet Education Services on inception of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC for no consideration in the period ended 28 February
2005. The asset taken over, where accounted for at the fair value at the date of transfer.

Figures in Rand

Bank balances
Short term deposits

13 months ended
31 March
2021

162,743,022
(2,938,416)
159,804,606

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *
165,455,406
(2,712,384)
162,743,022

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *
168,167,789
(2,712,383)
165,455,406
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10. PROVISIONS
RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS - 2021
Figures in Rand
Provision for leave pay

Opening
balance

Additions

Utilised during
the year

Total

1,604,027

397,216

(296,962)

1,704,281

Opening
balance

Additions

Utilised during
the year

Total

1,596,467

174,756

(167,196)

1,604,027

Opening
balance

Additions

Total

1,443,546

152,921

1,596,467

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS - 2020
Figures in Rand

96

Provision for leave pay

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS - 2019
Figures in Rand
Provision for leave pay
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11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
13 months ended
31 March
2021

Figures in Rand

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Financial instruments:
Trade payables

4,691,996

8,401,540

578,656

2,454,170

873,222

12,178,061

3,151,913

3,608,927

Accrued expenses
Payroll accruals
Deposits received

2,063,056

111,372

111,372

111,372

17,560,085

14,118,995

6,656,577

The average credit period for certain goods is five months. Interest is not charged on these amounts as they are within the credit limits granted by the suppliers. Interest is charged
at an average rate of 4.5% on overdue outstanding balances. The amount of interest paid on overdue amounts is R45 (2019/20 :R1,463; 2018/19 :R24,341)).

12. DEFERRED INCOME

97
13 months ended
31 March
2021

Figures in Rand

Non-current liabilities

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

183,174,114

Current liabilities

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

186,600,392

189,763,110

43,000,000

-

-

226,174,114

186,600,392

189,763,110

DEFERRED INCOME RECONCILIATION - 2021
Figures in Rand
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Deferred income
Opening
recognised
during
balance
the year

Grant income
received

Grant income
utilised

Total

186,600,393

(3,426,278)

-

-

183,174,115

-

-

289,141,629

(246,141,629)

43,000,000

186,600,393

(3,426,278)

289,141,629

(246,141,629)

226,174,115
* See Note 25
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12. DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUES)
DEFERRED INCOME RECONCILIATION - 2020
Figures in Rand
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Deferred income
Opening
recognised
during
balance
the year

Grant income
received

Grant income
utilised

Total

189,763,111

(3,162,718)

-

-

186,600,393

-

-

247,355,790

(247,355,790)

-

189,763,111

(3,162,718)

247,355,790

(247,355,790)

186,600,393

Grant income
received

Grant income
utilised

Total

DEFERRED INCOME RECONCILIATION - 2019
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Figures in Rand
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Deferred income
Opening
recognised
during
balance
the year
192,925,829

(3,162,718)

-

-

189,763,111

4,500,000

(4,500,000)

234,781,461

(234,781,461)

-

197,425,829

(7,662,718)

234,781,461

(234,781,461)

189,763,111

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The deferred income relates to government grant received for the construction of phase I and II, which was completed in the financial year ended 28 February 2011. The deferred
income would be amortised and realised as income over the useful lives of the building. The nature and extent of government grants recognised in the audited annual financial
statements and an indication of other forms of government assistance from which the entity has directly benefited.

CURRENT LIABILITES

The deferred income recognised is relating to unfulfilled conditions attached to the grant assistance received in the 2020/21 financial year. The unfulfilled grant conditions will
be completed within the next financial year, the income will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehesive Income.
* Sci-Bono Long Distance Multimedia Support Centre R43,000,000.
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13. REVENUE
13 months ended
31 March
2021

Figures in Rand

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Revenue from contracts with customers
Souvenir Shop sales

504,318

3,479,620

2,252,938

1,077,347

1,112,742

827,523

Climbing wall income

2,130

126,960

73,375

Team building Income

-

-

73,375

1,583,795

4,719,322

3,153,836

92,875
1,676,670

516,297
5,235,619

625,992
3,779,828

6,428

164,378

20,969

Gate takings, venue hire, and training income

Revenue other than from contracts with customers
Rental income

14. COST OF SALES
Sale of goods

A souvenir shop was opened in July 2018 to service the customers with educational consumables (especially related to the science shows offered at the centre).

15. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Access card issue fee
Other income

-

419,119

289,335

3,911,840

124,875

76,750

-(71,964)

(226,396)

-

-

-

-

16. OTHER OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
Gains (losses) on disposals, scrappings and settlements
Property, plant and equipment

3

(1,075,660)

Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Net foreign exchange gains

25,592
(1,050,068)
* See Note 25
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17. OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
Operating surplus/(deficit) for the period is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

Figures in Rand

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

Auditor’s remuneration - external
Audit fees

516,936

1,438,386

504,039

12,072,137

11,595,498

12,925,063

18. INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest income
Investments in financial assets:
Bank and other cash
100

The investment income is generated from two sources, Nedbank Investment Fund and Standard bank Call Account. The Nedbank Investment Fund generated interest at annualized
total rate of 7.76% and the rate generated by the Standard Bank Call Account is 6.15%.

19. FINANCE COSTS
Interest paid

45

1,463

24,341

The average credit period for certain goods is five months. Interest is not charged on these amounts as they are within the credit limits granted by the suppliers. Interest is charged
at an average rate of 4.5% on overdue outstanding balances. The amount of interest paid on overdue amounts is R45 (2019/20 :R1,463; 2018/19 :R24,341).

* See Note 25
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20. TAXATION
MAJOR COMPONENTS OF THE TAX EXPENSE

The company has been approved as a Public Benefit Organisation (PBO) in terms of section 30 of the Income Tax Act, (the Act) and the receipts and accruals are exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1)(cN) of the Act.

Figures in Rand

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

21. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Surplus/(Loss) before taxation

5,760,228

19,676,596

7,525,050

8,939,549

10,115,797

9,425,657

471,964

226,396

1,075,660

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Losses on disposals, scrappings and settlements of assets and liabilities
Gains on foreign exchange
Interest income
Finance costs
Movements in provisions
Other non-cash items 1

-

-

(25,592)

(12,072,137)

(11,595,498)

(12,925,063)

45

1,463

24,341

100,254

7,560

152,921

-

-

646,805

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Deffered income

6,429

19,685

(30,606)

565,782

14,479,852

6,310,921

3,441,090

7,462,418

(4,011,820)

39,573,722

(3,162,718)

(7,662,718)

46,786,926

37,231,551

505,556

* See Note 25
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Figures in Rand

13 months ended
31 March
2021

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

22. CONTINGENCIES
CONTIGENT ASSET

Debtors balance of Value Added Tax (VAT) refunds is unmatched by the actual payments from the South African Revenue Services (SARS). There is a number of returns that are
still under consideration from the SARS dating back from as early as 2015/16 financial year. The total value these VAT returns at the end of 2020/21 financial year is R25,363,827
(accummulated).
Due to the life span of the debt, the certainty of receiving the payment is in question; thus we have decided to move the balance from the Statement of Financial Position into a
Contigent Asset.

23. RELATED PARTIES
102

RELATIONSHIPS

Gauteng Department of Education
The organisation exist to support the Gauteng Department of Education (GDE) deliver on its mandate, through a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) dated 15 April 2017. The MOA
states that the primary purpose of the agreement is to facilitate and regulate the working relationship between the GDE and Sci-Bono, and to provide a formal agreement which
defines: (1) The procedures of the GDE to provide funding to Sci-Bono for the approved science centre operations and GDE projects; and (2) The methods of Sci-Bono to effectively
implement science centre operations and all the projects and tasks which it undertakes, at the request of the GDE, and with resources provided by the GDE.

RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Gauteng Department of Education (GDE)

206,586,000

220,245,500

209,153,365

10,229,446

8,609,209

8,148,053

Compensation to directors and other key management
Remuneration to directors and other key management

* See Note 25
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24. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
EXECUTIVE - 2021
Emoluments

Other Benefits*

Pension paid
or receivable

Total

Dr. Chakane, Moretsele Morrison
Mr. Davids, Anele Jeremiah Stephen

1,830,933
1,198,401

72,144
46,125

225,574
145,197

2,128,651
1,389,723

Mr. Maluleke, Nkateko Raymond
Ms. Mapela, Fikile

1,201,192
1,174,497

46,952
46,126

147,576
144,958

1,395,720
1,365,581

Figures in Rand

Ms. Mtshali, Mbali

759,255

37,422

94,733

891,410

6,164,278

248,769

758,038

7,171,085

1,795,980
1,163,864

69,058
63,470

179,086
114,499

2,044,124
1,341,833

520,936
892,090

43,138
51,413

52,185
76,060

616,259
1,019,563

Ms. Mapela, Fikile

1,152,953

107,698

114,499

1,375,150

Ms. Mtshali, Mbali

798,536

36,790

74,316

909,642

6,324,359

371,567

610,645

7,306,571

Dr. Chakane, Moretsele Morrison
Mr. Davids, Anele Jeremiah Stephen

1,441,413
920,475

102,489
68,376

187,605
121,042

1,731,507
1,109,893

Ms. Gule, Tebogo
Ms. Mapela, Fikile Daphne

1,016,801
920,867

74,791
68,376

122,443
120,650

1,214,035
1,109,893

597,374

40,681

78,626

716,681

EXECUTIVE - 2020
Dr. Chakane, Moretsele Morrison
Mr. Davids, Anele Jeremiah Stephen
Ms. Gule, Tebogo
Mr. Maluleke, Nkateko Raymond

EXECUTIVE - 2019

Ms. Mtshali, Mbali
Mr. Tsotetsi, Phehello Raymond

* Other benefits comprise performance and discretionary bonuses, re-imbursive travelling costs and subsistence.
** Company contributions comprise both medical aid and provident funds.

1,146,448

68,062

163,110

1,377,620

6,043,378

422,775

793,476

7,259,629
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24. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUES)
NON-EXECUTIVE - 2021
Figures in Rand
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Directors’ fees

Other fees (**)

Total

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)
Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Deputy Chairperson)

339,000
298,000

8,730
7,775

347,730
305,775

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas
Rev. Chikane, Frank
Mr. Gounden, Sathiaseelan

375,000
67,000

11,228
1,846

386,228
68,846

109,000

2,782

111,782

Mr. Malele, Ganelang Zeth

220,000

6,602

226,602

Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel

188,000

5,345

193,345

Ms. Moloka, Patricia Ntepane

481,000

13,240

494,240

Mr. Mphahlele, Mashane Johannes

140,000

4,200

144,200

Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vhathiswa Belinda

241,000

8,251

249,251

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

318,000

8,862

326,862

Mr. Tsotetsi,Coffee Godfrey

176,000

4,800

180,800

Ms. Abdul, Rochelle (*)

20,000

600

20,600

Ms. Manthata, Kgabiso (*)

20,000

600

20,600

Ms. Matobako, Monica (*)

30,000

900

30,900

Mr. Tibini, Stephen (*)

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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600

20,600

3,042,000

86,361
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24. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUES)
NON-EXECUTIVE - 2020
Figures in Rand

Directors’ fees

Other fees (**)

Total

Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)
Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Deputy Chairperson)

212,500
91,500

9,475
2,582

221,975
94,082

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas
Rev. Chikane, Frank

148,500
36,000

8,045
2,079

156,545
38,079

Mr. Gounden, Sathiaseelan

105,000

2,183

107,183

Mr. Malele, Ganelang Zeth

101,500

2,826

104,326

Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel

74,500

7,454

81,954

159,500

6,685

166,185

91,500

6,692

98,192

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

123,500

2,099

125,599

Ms. Abdul, Rochelle (*)

46,000

1,240

47,240

Ms. Manthata, Kgabiso (*)

34,000

1,278

35,278

Mr Tibini, Stephen (*)

25,000

1,000

26,000

1,249,000

53,638

1,302,638

133,286
81,500

7,622
2,053

140,908
83,553

Prof. Bantwini, Bongani Douglas
Rev. Chikane, Frank

99,500
20,000

6,228
1,272

105,728
21,272

Mr. Gounden, Sathiaseelan

98,000

3,242

101,242

Mr. Malele, Ganelang Zeth

52,000

1,404

53,404

Adv. Mokgatle, Lentswe Gabriel

44,000

6,051

50,051

Ms. Moloka, Patricia Ntepane
Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vhathiswa Belinda

NON-EXECUTIVE - 2019
Mr. Witbooi, Abbey (Chairperson)
Ms. Madiba, Nandipha Daphne (Deputy Chairperson)

Ms. Moloka, Patricia Ntepane

129,000

5,945

134,945

Dr. Papu-Zamxaka, Vhathiswa Belinda

41,500

3,926

45,426

Prof. Sitole, Khulekani

90,100

2,189

92,289

Ms. Mathata, Kgabiso (*)

37,000

1,100

38,100

Mr. Tbini, Stephen (*)

20,500

1,006

21,506

846,386

42,038

888,424

* Independent Audit & Risk Committee (ARC) members
** Other fees include Travel and Communications costs
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25. PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS
Debtors balance of Value Added Tax (VAT) refunds is unmatched by the actual payments from the South African Revenue Services (SARS). There is a number of returns that are
still under consideration from the SARS dating back from as early as 2015/16 financial year. The total value these VAT returns at the end of 2020/21 financial year is R25,363,827
(accummulated).
Due to the life span of the debt, the certainty of receiving the payment is in question; thus we have decided to move the balance from the Statement of Financial Position into a
Contigent Asset.
The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:
Statement of Financial Position
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Trade Receivables

-

(40,568)

(23,694,351)

Retained Earnings

-

40,568

23,694,351

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
2021
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

Fair value through
Surplus or Loss Designated

Amortised Cost

Total

Fair Value

Investments at fair value

7

245,201,090

-

245,201,090

245,201,090

Trade and other receivables

6

-

11,527,268

11,527,268

11,527,268

Cash and cash equivalents

8
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-

14,526,877

14,526,877

14,526,877

245,201,090

26,054,145

271,255,235

271,255,235
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUES)
2020
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

Fair value through
Surplus or Loss Designated

Amortised Cost

Total

Fair Value

Investments at fair value

7

203,320,044

-

203,320,044

203,320,044

Trade and other receivables

6

-

13,678,399

13,678,399

13,678,399

Cash and cash equivalents

8

-

8,732,915

8,732,915

8,732,915

203,320,044

22,411,314

225,731,358

225,731,358

Fair value through
Profit or Loss Designated

Amortised Cost

Non Financial Assets

Fair Value

2019
Note(s)
Investments at fair value

7

148,953,795

-

148,953,795

148,953,795

Trade and other receivables

6

-

13,634,726

13,634,726

13,634,726

Cash and cash equivalents

8

-

21,688,133

21,688,133

21,688,133

148,953,795

35,322,859

184,276,654

184,276,654
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUES)
Categories of financial liabilities

2021
Figures in Rand

Trade and other payables

Note(s)

11

Amortised Cost

Total

Fair Value

17,560,085

17,560,085

-

Amortised Cost

Total

Fair Value

14,118,995

14,118,995

-

Amortised Cost

Total

Fair Value

6,656,577

6,656,577

-

2020
108

Figures in Rand

Trade and other payables

Note(s)

11

2019
Figures in Rand

Trade and other payables

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

Note(s)

11
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUES)
13 months ended
31 March
2021

Figures in Rand

12 months ended
29 February
2020
Restated *

12 months ended
28 February
2019
Restated *

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns and benefits for stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the company consists of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 7, and reserves as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
Trade and other payables

11

17,560,085

14,118,995

6,656,577

Cash and cash equivalents

8

(14,526,877)

(8,732,915)

(21,688,133)

3,033,208

5,386,080

(15,031,556)

453,799,865

434,044,149

434,013,841

1%

1%

(3) %

Net borrowings
Equity
Gearing ratio

OVERVIEW

The company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•

Credit risk;

•

Liquidity risk; and

•

Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits
exposure to any one counter-party.
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUES)
2021

7

2019

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Credit Loss
Allowance

Amortised
Cost / Fair
Value

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Credit Loss
Allowance

Amortised
Cost / Fair
Value

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Credit Loss
Allowance

Amortised
Cost / Fair
Value

245,201,090

-

245,201,090

203,320,044

-

203,320,044

148,953,795

-

148,953,795

Figures in Rand
Investments at fair value
through surplus or loss

2020

Trade and other receivables

6

11,527,268

-

11,527,268

13,678,399

-

13,678,399

13,634,726

-

13,634,726

Cash and cash equivalents

8

14,526,877

-

14,526,877

8,732,915

-

8,732,915

21,688,133

-

21,688,133

271,255,235

-

271,255,235

225,731,358

-

225,731,358

184,276,654

-

184,276,654

LIQUIDITY RISK
110

The company is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the company will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they become due. The company manages its liquidity
risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing requirements are met through a mixture of cash generated from operations but without
long and short term borrowings.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The company does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

INTEREST RATE RISK

As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

27. GOING CONCERN
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. Management has considered the consequences of COVID-19 and other events and conditions, and it has determined that they do not create a material uncertainty that casts significant doubt upon the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
The ongoing impact of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic continues to cause a significant deterioration in economic conditions and has affected the organisations, our funders and our
visitors (footfall). Whilst our revenue decreased for the second year in a row, our funding has increased. The decrease in revenue is comparatively insignificant to the increase in funding.
The organisation’s ability to operate debt free (without borrowings/loans) continues to be one of it’s greatest asset and strength.
Management has assessed these events or conditions (individually and collectively), and remain confident that the going concern assumption is still appropriate as a basis for the preparation of the company’s financial statements.
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28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The World Health Organisation declared a global health emergency in January 2020 and in March 2020, it declared the spread of COVID-19 as a global pandemic. On the 15th March 2020,
the South African Government declared a National State of Disaster, in terms of the Disaster Management Act [No. 57 of 2002]. The COVID-19 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020, with
a significant number of cases. Measures taken by various governments to contain the virus have affected economic activity.
As time passes, the impact of COVID-19 on our services and/or operations continues to change. As a result of quick decision-making and adaption to the new normal; with the guidance
of the Board of Directors and other Key Stakeholders; Management were able to migrate many of our service offerings into digital platforms. The migration has assisted us to be able to
deliver on service offerings with limited impact from the continous up and down adjustments to Lockdown Regulations.
Whilst it’s evident that the footfall has generally decreased, Management have established a Sci-Bono Long Distance Multimedia Support Centre; with the assistance from the GDE. Whilst
contruction is planned to be completed in October 2021, some of the components are already operational (e.g broadcasting of live and recorded lessons). The Support Centre will assist us
in delivering most of our servvices digitally, increaase our footprint not only Nationally but Globally. The Support Centre will improve the service offerings going into the future.

29. CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR-END
The financial year-end has been changed from 28 February to 31 March; effective from 16 September 2020. This has resulted in the 2020/21 financial year having thirteen(13) months.
The 13th month figures (31 March 2021) do not impact the annual financial statements materially to warrant a separate disclosure.
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FUNDRAISING 2020 – 2021

Gauteng Department of Education
Matthew Goniwe School of Leadership
Dell

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre would like to recognise and thank all donors for their valued
contributions. We are delighted to have your support. Through your donation, we have been
able to accomplish the impossible and continue working towards our vision of being a a
world class science centre, building capacity in maths, science, and technology in South
Africa.
The Sci-Bono Annual Report is indicative of how impactful your support has been in creating
a stepping stone to a new future, nurturing dreams for a better tomorrow. We believe that
all donations, regardless of size, are significant and Sci-Bono Discovery Centre is deeply
grateful for your ongoing support.
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SAP
Air Liquide
US Embassy
SAASTEC
HUAWEI Technologies
FINLAND Embassy
BMW SA
IBM

During the pandemic, as we gained momentum in reaching out for new partnerships and
collaborations, we had a delay with our progress in finalising funding opportunities for our
programmes and the many other projects and initiatives we undertake.

Santam

We are also in the process of developing new, innovative, and crucial relevant partnerships
henceforth.

SASOL

Shoprite Checkers
SMART/FYBOTECH

Coca-Cola
Lesotho Water Research
US Embassy (International Visitors Leadership Programme)
Dr KOS and Nat Geo (Speak to a Scientist)
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Tel: +27 (0)11 639 8400 | Fax: +27 (0)11 832 3360 | Email: info@sci-bono.co.za | Web: www.sci-bono.co.za
C/o Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Streets | Newtown | Johannesburg | PO Box 61882 | Marshalltown | 2107
C/o Miriam Makeba & Helen Joseph Streets |
Newtown | Johannesburg | PO Box 61882 | Marshalltown | 2107
@SciBono01

@scibono

@SciBono
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